Public Document Pack

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
WEDNESDAY 30 JULY 2014, 2.00 PM
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall, Peterborough City Council
Contact – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 452508

AGENDA
Page No
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Minutes of the Meeting held 19 June 2014

4.

Public Questions

5.

Review of Complaints

17 - 18

6.

Co-opted Member Recruitment Update

19 - 48

7.

Rules of Procedure

49 - 68

8.

Interim Chief Finance Officer Arrangements

69 - 72

9.

Decisions by the Commissioner

73 - 82

10.

Commissioners Response to the HMIC Report on Cambridgeshire
Constabulary's Approach to Tackling Domestic Abuse

83 - 86

11.

Objective Two - Deliver Policing within the Available Budget

87 - 90

12.

Holding to Account

91 - 94

13.

Update on Progress for Implementation of the Victims' Hub

95 - 98

3 - 16

14.

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel Annual Report

99 - 102

15.

Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan

103 - 106

Membership;
Councillors: M McGuire, J D Ablewhite, T Hunt, M Shellens, B Shelton, D Oliver, L Herbert,
P Reeve, J Davidson, M Fletcher and D Over.
Independent Co-optees;
Christine Graham
Vacancy
Officer Support;
Ian Phillips

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
HELD AT PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL
ON 19 JUNE 2014

1.

Members Present:

Councillors McGuire (Chair), Ablewhite (Vice Chair), Hunt, Oliver,
Shellens, Sinnott, Stokes and Christine Graham.

Officers Present:

Paulina Ford
Ian Phillips
Kim Sawyer

Others Present:

Sir Graham Bright

Peterborough City Council
Peterborough City Council
Peterborough City Council

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime
Commissioner
Brian Ashton
Deputy Cambridgeshire Police and Crime
Commissioner
Dr Dorothy Gregson Chief Executive, Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner
Robert Vickers
Interim Chief Finance Officer

Election of Chairman
Councillor McGuire was nominated and seconded. There were no other nominations and
Councillor McGuire was named as chairman for 2014/15.

2.

Election of Vice-chairman
Councillor Ablewhite was nominated and seconded. There were no other nominations and
Councillor Ablewhite was named as vice-Chairman for 2014/15.

3.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Reeve, Herbert, Shelton, Fletcher and
Over. Councillor Sinnott was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Herbert and
Councillor Stokes was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Over.

4.

Declarations of Interest
Christine Graham read out the following statement:
Prior to the last meeting of the Panel I believed I had a pecuniary interest in one of the
decisions taken by the PCC and contacted the Officer to enquire about how I should handle
this. I was advised that I should tell the panel that I had an interest in one of the items (but
that I did not need to declare the interest or the item) and leave if, and when, that item was
discussed. When the item was reached there were no comments or questions so I did not
leave the meeting.

3

Following the meeting it has come to my attention that I have never been asked to complete
a declaration of interests in respect of this committee. As I had not completed this form, I
should therefore have stated what the interest was. I would like the committee to know that
the PCC has awarded £2,500 to Peterborough Neighbourhood Watch. My Community
Interest Company, Transforming Local Communities, has been contracted by PNHW to carry
out some training at a cost of £950 which will be paid from this grant from the PCC.
I have now completed the Declaration of interest form as I should have been requested to
when being appointed to the Panel.
No other declarations of interest were given.
5.

Minutes of the meeting held 19 March 2014.
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2014 were agreed as an accurate record and
the action points were noted.

6.

Independent Co-opted Member
The Chair advised the Panel that the Co-opted Member Mr Raj Ali had not attended a
meeting of the Panel for over a year and that under the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime
Panel arrangements, section 3.17 Co-opted Members, paragraph 3.25 the Panel may decide
to terminate the appointment. The Chair read out the paragraph:
The Panel may decide to terminate the appointment of a co-opted Member of the Panel if at
least two-thirds of the persons who are Members of the Panel at the time when the decision
is made vote in favour of making that decision at any time for the reasons set out below and
on doing so shall give written notice to the co-opted Member:
a) if the co-opted Member has been absent from the Panel for more than three months
without the consent of the Panel;
The Chair advised that Mr Ali had been written to on two occasions to ask if he would be
attending meetings and continuing in his role but there had been no response.
The Chair therefore proposed that Mr Ali’s membership of the Panel be terminated and
recruitment of a replacement independent co-opted Member take place. All those in
attendance agreed.
The Chair also proposed that the recruitment for a new independent co-opted Member
should be conducted in the same way as previously and that a panel of three members taken
from the membership of the Police and Crime Panel should be set up to conduct interviews
and oversee the recruitment process. All those in attendance agreed.
The Chair sought volunteers for the recruitment panel and the following Members of the
Panel put their names forward: Councillor Jason Ablewhite, Cllr David Oliver and Councillor
Tom Hunt. The Chair requested that the recruitment process start as soon as possible and
would therefore hopefully be concluded by the next meeting in July or at the very latest the
November meeting.
ACTION
The Lead Officer to start the process for recruiting a new Independent Co-opted Member.

7.

Public Questions
Ten questions had been submitted to the Panel and are attached at Appendix 1 of the
minutes. Any responses given to those questions presented by persons not in attendance

4

are also included in the attachment. Those not in attendance would receive written
responses. Mr Taylor was in attendance to receive the response to his questions.
ACTIONS
The Rules of Procedure to be amended with regard to the section 7, Public Participation,
Questions.
8.

Complaints Report
The Panel received a report which provided an update on any complaints made against the
Police and Crime Commissioner.
ACTION
The Panel noted that no complaints had been received against the Police and Crime
Commissioner or his Deputy since the last report received.

9.

Rules of Procedure
The Lead Officer supporting the Panel introduced the Report which provided the Panel with
an opportunity to review the Rules of Procedure at its Annual Meeting as required at
paragraph 1.4 of the Rules of Procedure. The Chair advised the Panel that any proposed
amendments made at the meeting would need to be approved at the next meeting before the
changes would be implemented.
The Panel then discussed the Rules of Procedure. Comments included:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Public Participation part to be up to a maximum of 30 minutes.
Questions not answered within the 30 minutes would be answered in writing within seven
days.
The Panel could look at ways of improving openness.
Rules of Procedure to be clearer regarding questions for the Panel and questions for the
Commissioner.
Questions to be presented in the order that they were received.
Police Operational questions could not be considered by the Panel.

The Chair requested that if Panel members thought of any further amendments after the
meeting they should contact the Secretariat.
ACTION
The Rules of Procedure to be amended and presented to the next meeting of the Panel for
approval.
10.

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Commissioner Annual Report 2013-2014
The Panel received a report to enable it to review the annual report issued by the Police and
Crime Commissioner under Section 12 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act
2011.
Responses by the Commissioner to questions from the Panel included:
•
•
•

It was a challenge to do more with less and protect the front line.
Cambridgeshire Constabulary is one of the lowest costing forces with one of the highest
percentages of time spent on the frontline.
The Commissioner had been achieving his pledges as stated in the plan.

5

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Victims support was a new responsibility of the Police and Crime Commissioner.
Local engagement and the outreach worker had been successful.
The numbers of specials had increased but the high turnover had been due to the fact
that they were volunteers and often moved into the force as a regular officer.
Operation METIS had been a driving force in reducing time that officers spent inside.
The collaboration between Cambridgeshire and Hertfordshire had been successful.
It was the Chief Constable’s decision as to whether he gave the PCSO’s additional
powers but the Commissioner would support this decision. Giving PCSO’s more powers
would make them more effective.
Members were concerned about cyclists and their behaviours and persistent misuse of
the traffic light system and asked the Commissioner if he had any plans to extend laws
regarding cyclists. The Commissioner informed the Panel that it was more about
educating cyclists. Police did issue tickets to cyclists.
Members asked if the Commissioner or any of his advisers attended the Police Panel
meetings. The Commissioner advised that he and his staff did occasionally attend Police
Panel meetings and that it was important for public engagement.
Recruitment of Special Constables was a challenge but there was a new Commander in
place with new ideas and was engaging with the office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner.
Members referred to page 66 and the performance table relating to Hate Crime and
noted that it had dropped. The Commissioner informed Members that it was a low
number but was taken very seriously however there was concern was that it might grow.
A lot of effort was being put in to large organisations to raise awareness of cybercrime
but some did not want to admit that cybercrime was an issue.
The Youth Crime Fund was £40K and had been targeted at areas which had problems. It
had been a success but there was a need to measure the outcomes. The Commissioner
would speak to the Cambridge Community Trust about the next tranche of funding.
Police Cadets had been looked at to ensure the right people were being targeted and
includes young people at risk of entering the criminal justice system or being socially
excluded e.g. those who were likely to go off the rails. A pilot scheme was being set up at
an Academy in Peterborough and the Commissioner’s office were providing uniforms. If
successful the scheme would be rolled out to other areas.
A Member of the Panel referred to the visibility of the PCSO’s and public perception and
asked if it was possible to publish when and where the PCSO’s go. The Commissioner
responded that this could possibly be done in the future with new technology being put in
place. This would need to be looked into. The PCSO’s went from village to village on a
rota. Operation METIS would be rolled out in one year and would free up police to be
outside more.
Members noted that the call handling performance for calls to be answered within target
was not always met and a Panel Member quoted a recent example of someone who had
been kept on hold for seventeen minutes. The Commissioner advised that he was keen
to hear about the example quoted to see what had gone wrong and would make contact
outside of the meeting for details.
Members referred to the performance of Victim Based Crime and noted that the report
did not specify the different types of victim based crime. Members were informed that a
victim of crime was a big issue regardless of the crime and all types of victim based crime
were as important as each other.
Members responded that some crimes were easier to deal with than others and the
concern was that data gathering on different types of crime was being lost. The
Commissioner responded that data gathering was important and required to make sure
crime was reported properly.
Members sought assurance that within the Victim Hub Pilot Scheme there would be
specialist knowledge to deal with victims of different crimes. Victims of rape and abuse
needed specialist skills to help them. The Commissioner assured Members that there
were trained specialist staff. All agencies were being used and specialists in each field
were available. It was a partnership operation.

6

•

Members referred to Operation METIS and were concerned about police absence rates
which were high and the reduction in the number of officers. Research had shown that
not having their own base to go back to could have an impact and asked the
Commissioner if he was going to collect data on the wellbeing of the police themselves.
The wellbeing of police officers was important and they needed respite.
The
Commissioner responded that the policeman would have everything he needed on his
slate or mobile and trials had shown that police were delighted with it and it made the
police officers life a lot easier. Looking after the wellbeing of the police officers was very
important and the Chief Constable took this very seriously.

The Chair reminded the Panel of its responsibilities in scrutinising the Police and Crime
Commissioner as stated in the Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act 2011 under
Chapter 13, Part 1, Chapter 4 section 28.
The Chair thanked the Commissioner for an informative report.
The Panel having reviewed the Annual Report had no further suggestions for the
Commissioner and was content with the report.
ACTION
The Panel noted the Annual Report 2013/2014.
11.

Objective One – Maintaining Local police Performance
The report was introduced by the Police and Crime Commissioner and provided the Panel
with an update on the progress made towards Objective One of the Police and Crime Plan –
Maintain Local Police Performance.
Members were informed that the Commissioner was currently conducting an online survey of
users of the 101 service to help identify what the specific issues were with call handling. It
had however improved considerably and was now 7 seconds on the first pick up.
The Chair noted that most of the information in the report had already been covered and
discussed during item 10, the Annual Report.
Additional items raised by the Panel included the following:
•

•

Members referred to the report and the mention of the Commissioners ‘monthly Board
meetings’ and asked who was on the Board and who chaired it. The Commissioner
responded that he chaired the Board and the following people sat on the Board: Deputy
Police and Crime Commissioner, Chief Executive, Director of Estates, Finance Director,
Engagement Director, Chief Constable and Deputy Chief Constable.
Members referred to the Commissioners Pledge of ‘Holding the Police to Account’ and
requested that the Commissioner provide examples of how he held the Police to Account
at a future meeting.

ACTION
The Commissioner to provide a report detailing examples of how he holds the Police to
Account at a future meeting.
12.

Decisions by the Commissioner
The Panel received a report to enable it to review or scrutinise decisions taken by the Police
and Crime Commissioner under Section 28 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility
Act 2011. The Panel was recommended to indicate whether it would wish to further review

7

and scrutinise the decisions taken by the Police and Crime Commissioner taken since the
previous Panel meeting.
The Chair referred to decision CPCC 2014-015: To approve the current interim OPCC Head
of Finance and requested that the Commissioner provide the Panel with a report on the role
of the Chief Finance Officer at the next meeting.
The Panel were informed that the Commissioner was recruiting for a permanent Chief
Finance Officer and dependent on timescales there may be a requirement for the Panel to
hold a Confirmation Hearing by the time the next meeting is held.
ACTION
The Panel noted the report and decisions that had been made by the Commissioner and
requested that the Commissioner provide the Panel with a report on the role of the Chief
Finance Officer at the next meeting.
13.

Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan 2014-2015
The Panel received and noted the agenda plan including dates and times for future
meetings.
ACTION
The Panel agreed that the following items be included on the Agenda Plan:
•
•

A report from the Commission on the role of the Chief Finance Officer.
A report from the Commissioner on how he holds the Police to Account.
ACTIONS

DATE OF
MEETING
19 June 2014

ITEM

ACTION

UPDATE

Independent Co- The Lead Officer to start the process for Update report on
opted Member
recruiting a new Independent Co-opted recruitment process to
Member.
be presented to the
Panel at the meeting
on 30 July 2014.
Public Questions The Rules of Procedure to be amended Amended Rules of
with regard to the section 7, Public Procedure to be
Participation, Questions.
presented to the Panel
at the meeting on 30
July 2014.
Rules of
The Rules of Procedure to be amended Amended Rules of
Procedure
and presented to the next meeting of the Procedure to be
Panel for approval.
presented to the Panel
at the meeting on 30
July 2014.
Cambridgeshire
The Panel noted the Annual Report No further action.
Police and Crime 2013/2014.
Commissioner
Annual
Report
2013-2014
Objective One – The Commissioner to provide a report Report to be presented
Maintaining Local detailing examples of how he holds the to the Panel at the
police
Police to Account at a future meeting.
meeting on 30 July
Performance
2014.

8

DATE OF
MEETING

ITEM

ACTION

UPDATE

Decisions by the The Panel noted the report and
Commissioner
decisions that had been made by the
Commissioner and requested that the
Commissioner provide the Panel with a
report on the role of the Chief Finance
Officer at the next meeting.

Panel to receive an
update report at its
meeting on 30 July
2014.

Meeting
Dates The Panel agreed that the following Agenda Plan updated.
and Agenda Plan items be included on the Agenda Plan:
2014-2015
• A report from the Commission on
the role of the Chief Finance
Officer.
• A report from the Commissioner
on how he holds the Police to
Account.

The meeting began at 2.00pm and ended at 3.44pm

CHAIRMAN

9

Appendix 1
CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
MEETING HELD ON 19 JUNE 2014

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
1.

Question from Paul Lythgoe (not in attendance)
To the Chair
Is the Chairman aware that I submitted to the Panel questions as listed below that were
not permitted to be put before the panel, and that it was stated in the March meeting that
no such questions had been posed or refused following a question to this affect from
Councillor Ablewhite?
On 30/01/2014 17:46, Ford Paulina wrote:
Dear Mr Lythgoe
Thank you for your email and questions. I have consulted with the Rules of Procedure
regarding questions for the Panel and also the Lead Officer supporting the Police and
Crime Panel regarding your questions and he has responded as below:
“The questions submitted by Mr Lythgoe are inappropriate for the Panel for the following
reasons:
1.
It is addressed to the Commissioner. Public questions to the Police and Crime
Panel are questions for the Panel about its roles and responsibilities; not questions for
the Commissioner.
2.

It is a series of multiple questions which is in breach of the rules of procedure.

"No person may submit more than two questions to a Panel meeting and no more than
two such questions may be asked on behalf of one organisation."
3.
The only aspect over which the Commissioner could reasonably be asked to
comment (and not in this format) is the distinction between ‘priority setting and noninterference in operational matters’. All of the other issues raised are operational issues.
The most appropriate and effective way for the author to have his question answered is
for it to be tabled to the Commissioner in writing by the author or addressed to one of the
Panel members in their scrutiny role or and in an amended format which meets the rules
of procedure.”
I hope that this has been of help to you. If you have any questions with regard to this
response please come back to me.
Regards
Paulina Ford
Senior Governance Officer Scrutiny
Democratic Services Team
Legal and Governance
Peterborough City Council
Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1HQ

10

Email: paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 452508

Answer
As Chairman I was unfortunately unaware of the questions submitted by yourself for the
January meeting. I accept that you had asked a question of the Panel and for the
reasons previously stated, the Panel was not able to respond to the points raised. I do
appreciate that the Panel should be aware of all questions asked of it, even if it is unable
to answer them. On this occasion, our processes for recording your question were not
as robust as they could have been for which I apologise.
The Panel recognises that its processes for dealing with public questions can be
improved and to that end, the Panel has agreed to alter its rules of procedure. In future,
all questions whether they fall within the remit of the Panel or not will be brought to the
attention of the Panel and a list of all questions will be provided at the meeting for the
public to view.
2.

Question from Paul Lythgoe
To the Chair
I would like to ask the Panel, and in particular the Chairman, why they have not raised
with Sir Graham Bright during panel meetings the failure of the PCC to recruit a
replacement for Mr Humsersome as CFO given.
The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act (PRSRA) 2011 under paragraph 6 of
Schedule 1 requires every PCC outside London to appoint a CFO. An identical duty
under paragraph 4 of Schedule 2 and paragraph 1 of Schedule 4 to the Police Reform
and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Chief Constable is also required to appoint a
CFO. The Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 requires both CFOs to comply with
relevant provisions within the Local Government Acts.
The failure to recruit and the criticism of the PCC by the HMIC is reported in agenda
item 5 of the PCC's May Business Co-ordination meeting prompting the appointment of
Mr Vickers as interim CFO. The shared use of Nicki Howard is mentioned in these
minutes and it is clearly at odds with the act that even as a stopgap that the PCC shared
Financial officer with the force and particularly in the submission of the budget. Further it
can be concluded that given the notice period for Mr Humersome and the criticism of his
contractual arrangements the panel would have had good grounds to question the PCC
on his failure to recruit for the primary function in his office. To date 7 months after Mr
Humersome left office the PCC has still failed to appoint a permanent CFO.
Answer
The response is in relation to the PCC Chief Finance Officer (CFO) position only.
The PCC CFO position was occupied by Mr Hummersone until being vacated on 30th
September 2013. A short term arrangement was put in place, in which Niki Howard (who
is also Director of Resources for the Chief Constable) agreed to undertake the role and
responsibilities of this function until an alternative solution was found.
The PCC CFO position is a full time permanent established position within the PCC
Office structure and Sir Graham is determined that this position will be filled permanently

11

with the right calibre of person who can help drive Police and Crime Plan and the Office
forward.
The PCC has sought to recruit to the position and interviewed potential candidates for
this position in February 2014. However, a successful candidate was not found.
Following this an interim CFO was put in place. Refer to the decision record “Police and
Crime Commissioner Chief Finance Officer” dated 15 May 2014 on the Police and Crime
Commissioner website.
A rigorous recruitment process is currently underway, with the engagement of Hays
Recruitment. This involves a proactive search for potential candidates that meets the
PCC criteria.
The PCC is hopeful of making an announcement in the near future, however, in the
meantime, has access to independent advice through current arrangements as set out
above.

3.

Question from David Hankins – (Not in attendance)
To the Chair.
I have written twice to two of the Peterborough councillors who sit on the Panel and
three times to the third about police community support officers and crime figures. I
neither received a reply or acknowledgement about issues which should be important to
those who represent the community’s interest on the Panel. What is the role of the
councillors on the Panel if they are not permitted to have a view on policing issues and
share it through correspondence with someone like me who cares about public service?
Response
As Chair, I am happy to answer questions that have been asked directly of the Panel
regarding its work as set out in the Panel’s rules of procedure. Panel members are
encouraged to express their views on crime and police issues and routinely respond to
questions asked by members of the public.
The Panel has responded to all questions that it has received. As Chair, I will contact
the individual Councillors and invite them to respond to you.
If you wish to ask any questions regarding the Panel’s work in future, please do address
them to the Panel via paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

4.

Question from David Hankins
To the Chair
A few weeks ago national figures were released indicating a significant fall in admissions
to Accident and Emergency hospital wards. This was closely followed by crime figures
revealing a major fall in overall crime. Neither of these events was seized upon locally to
praise the work of the police and more important to ease the fear of crime. Why was this
opportunity missed?
Answer
While crime statistics are an important measure with which the public can gauge the
performance of their local force, they are nonetheless only part of the bigger picture. The
Commissioner and Constabulary are forging ahead with work which puts real people -

12

the victims of crime and anti-social behaviour – at the centre of what we do, as opposed
to data and targets.
Crime statistics are released quarterly and have consistently shown a reduction over a
number of years both by local data and independent British Crime Survey data. They
have therefore regularly featured in the media, with Cambridgeshire working proactively
with the press in this respect. However, the integrity of crime statistics has increasingly
been in the spotlight. News coverage of reductions in crime can, and has, been met with
a degree of cynicism by the public. Many now question the validity of this information.

5.

Question from Darryl Goodlife (not in attendance)
Question does not fall within the remit of the Panel.
“In light of the recent demonstration held by the English Defence League and the
provocative behaviour of some participants in this demonstration (chanting ‘Muslim
pedos off our streets’, banners claiming 80% of child abusers are Muslim) and
inflammatory speeches made by speakers from the platform which again clearly tried to
establish the link between being a Muslim and a child abuser by claiming the majority of
child abusers were Muslim and talked of the EDL being “footsoliders” in a “war”, what
will be done by the police to ensure that all citizens of Peterborough can exercise their
right to walk through the City Centre without feeling intimidated and free from fear if such
an event were to be held in the City again?”
If you require anything further from me please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at this email address or on 07592129634.

6

Question from Councillor John Fox, Peterborough City Council – (Not in
Attendance)
To the Chair
Would the Police panel please tell me how many new posts have been created since the
introduction of the role of Police Commissioner was introduced and at what cost to the
taxpayers of this City (Peterborough).
Answer
Upon taking up office on the 22nd November 2012, all police staff and former police
authority staff became employees of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) in line
with Government legislation and PCCs across the country. At this point the total number
of staff employed by the PCC was 801.93 ftes (full time equivalents), which included 9.9
ftes working specifically within the OPCC.
The legislation provided for a second stage transfer of staff which resulted in September
2013 with all police and crime commissioners notifying the Home Secretary of their draft
staffing intentions with regard to who the employment of staff would fall under, Police
and Crime Commissioner or Chief Constable. The Home Secretary approved the Draft
proposals for Cambridgeshire. This, along with deciding whose responsibility assets,
liabilities, contracts and bank accounts sit under is known as “Stage 2 Transfers”.
Cambridgeshire submitted its final stage 2 staffing transfer schemes by the Home Office
deadline of the 6th March 2014 for approval. This became effective from 1st April 2014.
Therefore on 31st March 2014, the staff under the employment of the Police and Crime
Commissioner was 791.2 ftes, including 11.97 ftes residing within the OPCC. The
Commissioner retained functions relating to finance, communications and estates.

13

As of 1st April only those residing within the OPCC are under the employment of the
Police and Crime Commissioner. It should be noted that this includes posts which are a
shared resource between the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable.
Below are the posts as at the October 2012 and those for the 2014-15 financial year.
The number of posts inherited by the PCC after the election on 15 Nov 2012 was 9.9
ftes at a budget of £488,000. This excludes the budget associated with the 17 Police
Authority Members.
The Commissioner’s 2014-15 staffing budget comprises 15.47 ftes (of which 3
historically sat within the Constabulary). The total staffing budget for 2014-15 is
therefore £763,784. The functions of the Police Authority and the OPCC are not
comparable.
7.

Question from Councillor Ed Murphy, Peterborough City Council – (Not in
attendance)
To the Chair
What is the view of the Panel concerning the Conservative Commissioners decision to
break his election promises and decide to increase the precept and spend more on his
office, expenses, deputy and his personal staff than was under the previous police
authority budget.
Answer
In the first financial year of operation, the Commissioner committed to reducing his office
budget by 10 per cent compared to the former Police Authority’s budget in its final full
year. That reduction was achieved.
The budget report and Medium Term Financial Plan submitted by the Commissioner to
the Police and Crime Panel in February 2014 included information about OPCC costs. It
stated that, going forward, it is impossible to compare like for like since the
Commissioner’s functions and duties are far wider than those of the former Police
Authority. This information can also be found on the Commissioner’s website at page 11,
paragraphs
4.19
to
4.22
here
http://cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2013/03/MTFP-2014-18-FINAL.pdf
The Council tax proposals have been shared and commented on by the Panel in detail
previously. The Commissioner’s election wording was for ‘no additional burden’ on
council tax. Sir Graham’s below inflation rise in precept adheres to that principle. The
level of precept was informed by what the Commissioner was told throughout the year
by the public, who want to see the number of frontline officers protected. Sir Graham
believes that the increase balances the public’s expectations of police visibility with the
affordability of a below inflation precept rise.

8.

Question from Councillor Ed Murphy, Peterborough City Council
Question does not fall within the remit of the Panel.
It has been reported and verified that Cambridgeshire police lied to those they tried to
recruit as spies, threatening to prosecute a woman involved in Unite Against Fascism
(UAF) if she told anyone about the attempt to recruit her. In recent months four people
have come forward to say that Cambridgeshire Police officers tried to recruit activists to
spy on Unite Against Fascism, UK Uncut and Cambridge Defend Education.
Is the Police and Crime Panel aware of the video evidence which came to light in

14

November last year and does the Panel agree that what the police said to that woman is
completely despicable and it is important her story has finally come out; the actions
taken by the Cambridgeshire police are human rights violations, specifically violating
Article 8 of the Human Rights Act of 1998. What steps are the Cambridgeshire Police
Service taking to ensure that they now comply with this legislation and what
deliberations have been made to the Panel, what representations have been made to
the panel and/or commissioner and how have these been dealt with?
9.

Question from Richard Taylor – (In attendance)
To: Police and Crime Panel member Christine Graham, or in her absence, rephrased
and addressed to the acting chair of the panel:
Which of the Commissioner’s decisions on the agenda for the panel’s March 2014
meeting did you intend to declare an interest in, and leave the room for the consideration
of, and why did you not declare the interest and leave the room as you indicated you
would?
At the March 2014 meeting of the Police and Crime Panel member Christine Graham
stated:
Background:
"Mr chair I have to declare an interest in one of the decisions and I’ll have to leave when
that one is discussed."
Christine Graham did not declare any interest, and didn't leave the room as she stated
she would.
I have made a video and transcript of the meeting available at:
http://www.rtaylor.co.uk/6716
Answer
Christine Graham made a statement under the Declaration of Interests with regard to
this question.

10.

Question from Richard Taylor
To: The chair, or acting chair, of the Police and Crime Panel:
Why are the Police and Crime Commissioner's replies to the Police and Crime Panel's
requests for written responses to matters raised during panel meetings not routinely
published by the panel and considered by subsequent panel meetings?
Answer
Items discussed at the meeting are as a matter of course in the minutes of that meeting.
Going forward written responses to questions could be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting as an appendix with the questions. The Rules of Procedure can be changed to
reflect this.
Public Participation time could also be extended to be up to 30 minutes.

Written responses to the Panel would also be published on the website.

15

This page is intentionally left blank

16

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 5

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of: Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council, Police and Crime Panel
Support
Contact Officer(s) – Ian Phillips
Contact Details – Ian.Phillips@peterborough.gov.uk

REVIEW OF COMPLAINTS
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To update the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel on complaints received against the
Commissioner.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Panel to note details of this report.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

3.1

This report discharges the responsibility for the Panel to have an overview of complaints made
against the Commissioner.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

This report provides a regular quarterly update to the Panel.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

During the course of this reporting period there were no complaints made against the
Commissioner.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

None

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

None

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

N/a.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1
10.

None
.
APPENDICES

10.1

None

17

This page is intentionally left blank

18

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 6

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of: Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council, Police and Crime Panel
Support
Contact Officer(s) – Ian Phillips
Contact Details – Ian.Phillips@peterborough.gov.uk

VACANCY FOR CO-OPTED MEMBER
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To update the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel on the vacancy for the Co-opted
Member.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Panel is asked to review and agree the job advert and associated documents prior to
advertisement.

2.2

The Panel is also asked to consider whether there are any key skills or experience that
prospective candidates should demonstrate to enhance the work of the Panel.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

3.1

The Panel is required to have two independent Co-opted Members as part of its membership.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

At the last meeting of the Panel, it was decided to terminate Mr Ali’s appointment due to nonattendance at Panel meetings. The Panel had written to Mr Ali, but received no response to
correspondence. Accordingly Mr Ali, no longer serves on the Police and Crime Panel and has
been duly advised.

4.2

The Panel has appointed Cllrs Ablewhite, Oliver and Hunt to act as the Interview Panel.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

The Panel may wish the Co-opted Member to have a particular background or skill set that can
further enhance the Panel’s existing skills. A generic advert has been prepared for the post,
however any specific skills/background can be included should the Panel identify any particular
areas.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

N/A

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

N/A

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

Subject to the Panel’s agreement, the role will shortly be advertised throughout Cambridgeshire

19

on council websites, partner networks and social media. A press notice will also be distributed
to media outlets in the County to alert them to the position.
8.2

9.

The application process will be handled by Peterborough City Council and will close on 22nd
August 2014.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1

None

10.

APPENDICES

10.1

•
•
•
•
•
•

Appendix 1 - Panel advert
Appendix 2 - Application form
Appendix 3 - Cover letter
Appendix 4 – Role Description
Appendix 5 - Information Booklet
Appendix 6 - Policy context

20

APPENDIX 1

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

Appointment of a Co-opted Independent Members to the Cambridgeshire
Police and Crime Panel

Expenses paid up to a maximum of £920 per annum

The Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel is looking for a committed and
energetic person from Cambridgeshire to help oversee and scrutinise the work
of the Police and Crime Commissioner.
The Police and Crime Commissioner is required to consult with the Panel on his
plans and budget for policing, as well as the level of council tax and the
appointment of a Chief Constable. The panel will maintain a regular check and
balance on the performance of the Commissioner.
If you are passionate about Cambridgeshire, want to make a real difference to
our communities and are interested in keeping our county safe, you might be
the person we need!
The role of a panel member will be an important and challenging one which
offers you the chance to review the key strategic actions and decisions taken by
the Police and Crime Commissioner.
The Panel is looking for an independent member to join who has knowledge
and skills in issues associated with policing and crime reduction, preventing
crime and anti-social behaviour and working in partnership to tackle complex
issues.
The new independent member will join a panel which consists of 11 Councillors
and one other independent member representing the councils and areas across
Cambridgeshire.
For full details and a copy of the application pack please contact Sarah Swift at
sarah.swift@peterborough.gov.uk or telephone 01733 863891
The closing date for applications is 5pm Friday 22nd August 2014.

21

This page is intentionally left blank

22

APPENDIX 2

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

Application form
Independent Member of the Cambridgeshire
Police and Crime Panel

Please write in black ink or type.
Please do not include a CV or other information.

Please return this completed application form by 5pm Friday 22nd August either:
•

by email to sarah.swift@peterborough.gov.uk, or

•

by post to:
Sarah Swift
Communities and Targeted Services
Peterborough City Council
4th Floor
Bayard Place
Peterborough
PE1 1HZ

23

APPENDIX 2

1.

Personal details

The information in this section will not form part of the shortlisting process and will be
separated from your application form upon receipt.
Title (Mr/Mrs/Ms etc)

Name in full (please also give any other names by which you have been known)

Permanent home address

How long have you lived at this address?

If less than five years at this address, please give details of your previous address(es)

Daytime telephone number

Evening telephone number

Mobile telephone number

Email address

Date of birth

24

APPENDIX 2

Please say whether there is any special provision, equipment or assistance we can
provide to help you attend an interview

References: Please give details of two people, not related to you, who have agreed to
be contacted by us about your application. It would be helpful if one referee was familiar
with your community activities. We intend to take up references for shortlisted
candidates prior to interview. If you do not wish us to contact your referees at that stage
then please indicate this clearly.
Name
Name
Address

Address

Tel No:

Tel No:

Email:

Email:

Position:

Position:

Please sign and date this form
I declare that the information I have given is true and complete.

Signed …………………………………………….. Date ……………

25

APPENDIX 2

2.

Equality monitoring questions

The information in this section will not form part of the recruitment process and will be
separated from your application form upon receipt. The information provided will be used
for monitoring purposes and to help us to develop our policies and practice. The
information provided will be treated confidentially and be subject to the provisions under
current equality and data protection legislation. You do not have to answer these
questions. However, by answering the questions you will help us to make sure that our
recruitment is fair and accessible to everyone.
• Gender
What is your gender?

¨ Male

• Age
Which age category are you in?
¨ 18-19
¨ 20-29
¨ 50-64
¨ 65-74

¨

¨ 30-39
¨ 75-84

Female

¨ 40-49
¨ 85 +

• Disability
Do you consider yourself to be a disabled person or to have a long-term, limiting
condition?
¨ Yes
¨ No
• Ethnicity
What is your ethnic group? Please choose one section from A – E, and then tick one box
to best describe your ethnic group or background.
A White
¨ English / Welsh / Scottish /
Northern Irish / British
¨ Irish
¨ Gypsy or Irish Traveller
¨ Any other White background,
please write in

B Mixed / multiple ethnic groups
¨ White and Black Caribbean
¨ White and Black African
¨ White and Asian
¨ Any other Mixed / multiple ethnic
background, please write in

C Asian
¨ Pakistani
¨ Bangladeshi
¨ Indian
¨ Chinese
¨ Any other Asian background, please
write in

D Black / African / Caribbean / Black
British
¨ African
¨ Caribbean
¨ Any other Black / African / Caribbean
background, please write in

E Other ethnic group
¨ Arab
¨ Any other ethnic group, please write in

26

APPENDIX 2

3.

Personal history

What is your current employment status and occupation, if any?

Please give details of part-time and full-time employment, voluntary work, career breaks
and any other work you do or have done in the local community. If you do not live in
Cambridgeshire and/or have not done so during the past 12 months please include the
main location of your work if this is different from your employer’s address.
Name and address of
Dates position Positions held and nature of
organisation
held (from/to) responsibility

27

APPENDIX 2

Please give details of any involvement in local community activities not already
mentioned above

Please list any academic, professional and/or vocational
qualifications

28

Date obtained

APPENDIX 2

4.

Required competencies, personal skills and qualities

Please give brief examples to demonstrate how you meet the following competencies
1. The ability to think strategically
To have breadth of vision – to rise above
detail, and to see problems and issues
from a wider, forward-looking perspective
– and to make appropriate linkages.

2. The ability to make good judgements
To take a balanced, open-minded and
objective approach – for example, in
evaluating the priorities of the police and
crime
commissioner,
assessing
candidates for top level appointments or
considering complaints against the police
and crime commissioner.
3. The ability to be open to change
To be able to challenge accepted views
constructively
without
becoming
confrontational, and to recognise and
respond positively to the need for change.

4. The ability to scrutinise and
challenge
To be able to rigorously scrutinise and
challenge constructively, using appropriate
data, evidence and resources.

5. The ability to be analytical
To interpret and question complex written
material – including financial and statistical
information and other data such as
performance measures – and identify the
salient points.

6. The ability to communicate
effectively
To be able to communicate effectively
both verbally and in writing – and to
interact positively with other members of
the Panel, the police and crime
commissioner, and the public.

29

APPENDIX 2

Please give brief examples to demonstrate the extent to which you possess the
following personal skills and qualities
1. Team working
The ability to play an effective role in
meetings through listening, persuading
and showing respect for the views of
others.

2. Self-confidence
The skill to challenge accepted views
constructively
without
becoming
confrontational.

3. Enthusiasm and drive
The ability to be proactive in seeking out
learning and developmental opportunities
to enhance knowledge and understanding
(for example, on financial matters and
statutory requirements).

4. Respect for others
The capacity to treat all people fairly and
with respect, to value diversity and
respond sensitively to difference.

5. Integrity
The necessity to embrace high standards
of conduct and ethics and be committed to
upholding human rights and equality of
opportunity for all.

6. Decisiveness
The ability to show resilience even in
challenging circumstances, remaining
calm and confident and able to make
difficult decisions.

30

APPENDIX 2

Please give details of your experience (in a paid or unpaid role) in community safety,
victim support, criminal justice and related issues

5. Why do you want to be a co-opted independent member?
Please say why you are interested in becoming a co-opted independent member of the
Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel

31

APPENDIX 2

6.

Other information

If you are employed, is your employer willing release you to carry out the duties of a coopted independent member of the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel?

Do you hold, or have recently held, any of the following positions?
• A member of the civilian staff of the Cambridgeshire police force
• A Member of Parliament, the National Assembly for Wales, the Scottish
Parliament or the European Parliament
• A Member of any of the County, District or Unitary councils in Cambridgeshire
• A police officer
If yes, please give details.

Is there anything in your private or working life, or in your past, or, to your knowledge, in
that of any member of your family or close friends, which, if it became generally known,
might bring you or the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel into disrepute, or call
into question your integrity, authority or standing as a member of the Panel?
If yes, please give details.

32

APPENDIX 3

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

RECRUITMENT OF AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER TO THE
CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
Thank you for your interest in becoming an Independent member of Cambridgeshire’s Police
and Crime Panel.
The Panel is part of the governance and accountability arrangements for policing in
Cambridgeshire. The Panel’s role is to maintain a regular check and balance on the work of
the Police and Crime Commissioner.
Following a recent vacancy, the Panel is now seeking to appoint a committed and energetic
person to serve as an Independent co-opted member for a four year term. This is an exciting
opportunity to be involved in reducing and preventing crime and disorder and for helping to
keep Cambridgeshire’s communities safe.
The role offers an opportunity to:
• Support the Police and Crime Commissioner in his role in helping tackle crime and
disorder
• Support public accountability and transparency through the work of the Panel
• Gain experience working with a wide range of stakeholders – senior councillors from
different local authorities as well as the Police and Crime Commissioner, Police and
other agencies
• Gain a strategic understanding of policing and community safety
• Experience working on a committee and of effective scrutiny processes
In the attached information pack you will find more information about the work of the new
Panel and about the role of the Panel members. You will also find an application form which
you should complete if you wish to apply for the role.
The closing date for applications is 5pm Friday 22nd August 2014, after which a working group
of the Panel will consider and assess all applications received.
The Panel wishes to reflect the breadth of communities in Cambridgeshire and welcomes
applications from all eligible people – irrespective of age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, gender, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
partnership status.
For more information or if you have any questions, please contact Sarah Swift at
sarah.swift@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 863891

33

This page is intentionally left blank

34

APPENDIX 4

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

ROLE DESCRIPTION
INDEPENDENT POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEMBERS
All Independent members of the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel are full voting members
and will have access to the same level of support and information as elected councillors on the
Panel. The core role of both elected and independent members on the Panel is to:
•
•
•

Scrutinise the work of the PCC to ensure that the PCC is discharging their functions
effectively
Bring any specialist knowledge, skills, experience and expertise they may have to the
scrutiny work of the Panel
Ensure that there is an effective independent challenge to the PCC and that this challenge
is constructive to support the PCC in carrying out their role

Responsibilities
Independent members of the Police and Crime Panel are expected to:
•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Attend all formal meetings of the Panel, including any sub-committees they are assigned to
Establish good relations with other members, officers and co-optees
Attend additional meetings e.g. working groups or evidence gathering sessions as required
Prepare for each meeting by reading the agenda papers and additional information to
familiarise yourself with the issues to be covered during the meeting. Prior to the meeting
consider the questions you may wish to put to the Police and Crime Commissioner and
other expert witnesses
At the meetings you will need to listen carefully, ask questions in a way which is nonjudgmental, respect confidentiality and help the Panel to make practical suggestions for
improvements in services
Assist in the preparation of reports and the formulation of recommendations; this may
involve volunteering to participate in a Task Group to conduct a scrutiny review
Attend training and development events as needed
Abide by the Panel Arrangements and Rules of Procedure which set out how the Police
and Crime Panel will operate in the Cambridgeshire area
Keep abreast of the key issues in relation to the responsibilities of the Police and Crime
Commissioner and the priorities within the Police and Crime Plan
Contribute to achieving an open, accountable and transparent decision making process in
relation to policing and community safety issues in the Cambridgeshire area

35

APPENDIX 4
Person Specification
This is a voluntary role (although reasonable travel expenses will be paid) and no specific
professional knowledge or experience is required. Applicants might have a professional
background in an area such as community safety, criminal justice or victim support. Alternatively, a
strong track record of community work or business skills would be just as valuable. An interest in
policing/community safety issues is expected.
Candidates will be assessed against the following competencies and personal qualities.
Competencies:
•

•

•
•

•

The ability to think strategically: To have breadth of vision, to rise above detail, and to
see problems and issues from a wider, forward-looking perspective and to make
appropriate linkages
The ability to make good judgements: To take a balanced, open-minded and objective
approach, for example, in evaluating the priorities of the Police and Crime Commissioner,
assessing candidates for top level appointments or considering complaints against the
Police and Crime Commissioner.
The ability to challenge: To be able to rigorously scrutinise and challenge constructively
without becoming confrontational, using appropriate data, evidence and resources
The ability to be analytical: To interpret and question complex written material, including
financial and statistical information and other data such as performance measures and
identify the salient points
The ability to communicate effectively: To be able to communicate effectively both
verbally and in writing – and to interact positively with other members of the Panel, the PCC
and the public

Personal Qualities:
•
•
•

•
•

Team working: The ability to play an effective role in meetings through listening,
persuading and showing respect for the views of others
Self-confidence: The skill to challenge accepted views constructively without becoming
confrontational
Enthusiasm and drive: The ability to be proactive in seeking out learning and
developmental opportunities to enhance knowledge and understanding (for example, on
financial matters and statutory requirements)
Respect for others: The capacity to treat all people fairly and with respect, to value
diversity and respond sensitively to difference
Integrity: The necessity to embrace high standards of conduct and ethics and be
committed to upholding human rights and equality of opportunity for all

Other Requirements and Considerations:
•
•

•
•

Candidates must be able to attend meetings at varying locations throughout the
Cambridgeshire area
Candidates should have the time, energy and commitment to prepare for and attend regular
meetings. We suggest that they would need to allocate around one day per month to
devote to this role
Candidates should have a willingness to learn
Candidates must be eligible for the role (see eligibility criteria in the Information Booklet)

36

APPENDIX 5

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

RECRUITMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS TO THE
CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
Questions and Answers

Contents
1.

What is a Police and Crime Panel?

2.

What is an independent member?

3.

How many members will Cambridgeshire’s Police and Crime Panel have?

4.

Why be an independent member?

5.

How will Police and Crime Panels work?

6.

What will I be expected to do?

7.

How much time is involved?

8.

Are there any rules about conduct or standards?

9.

Will I receive any payment?

10.

How long will I be a member?

11.

What qualities do I need?

12.

Who can be an independent member?

13.

How do I apply?

14.

What happens next?

15.

How can I find out more?

37

APPENDIX 5
1. What is a Police and Crime Panel?
Police and Crime Panels (P&CPs) are being introduced to support and scrutinise the work of the
directly elected Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC). They will both scrutinise the actions and
decisions of the PCC and support and challenge PCCs in the exercise of their functions.
2. What is an independent member?
P&CPs have two types of member:
•

Local councillors – appointed to the Panel by local councils, and

•

Independent members – local people who are not councillors, chosen through an open
recruitment process.

3. How many members will Cambridgeshire’s Police and Crime Panel have?
The Cambridgeshire P&CP will have 13 members. 11 will be local councillors and 2 will be
independent members. The councillor members who have already been appointed are as follows:
•

Cambridgeshire County Council:

Cllr Mac Maguire (Conservative) Chair
Cllr Michael Shellens (LD)
Cllr Peter Reeve (UKIP)

•

Peterborough City Council:

Cllr David Over (Conservative)
Cllr Michael Fletcher (Independent)
Cllr Julia Davidson (LD)

•

Cambridge City Council:

Cllr Lewis Herbert (Labour)

•

East Cambridgeshire District Council:

Cllr Tom Hunt (Conservative)

•

Fenland District Council:

Cllr David Oliver (Conservative)

•

Huntingdonshire District Council:

Cllr Jason Ablewhite (Conservative)

•

South Cambridgeshire District Council:

Cllr Ben Shelton (Conservative)

4. Why be an independent member?
As a member of the P&CP you can play a key role in helping to keep local communities safe by
supporting and scrutinising the work of the directly elected PCC. It is an important and challenging
role which offers you the chance to review the key strategic actions and decisions taken by the
PCC, including whether they have achieved the objectives set out in their Police and Crime Plan
and Annual Report, considered the priorities of community safety partners and consulted
appropriately with the public.

38

APPENDIX 5
5. How will Police and Crime Panels work?
P&CPs will meet regularly in public to carry out their main responsibilities. There will be at least
four meetings per year, but this may increase to cope with the amount of business required to be
covered by the P&CP. The P&CP may also need to set up some sub-committees to consider
specific aspects of business.
6. What will I be expected to do?
You will be expected to attend and participate in all meetings of the P&CP and any of its subcommittees that you may be assigned to. You will need to be prepared to read papers, reports and
background information in advance of meetings and keep up-to-date with national and local crime
and disorder issues and maintain a good working knowledge of PCC roles and responsibilities.
7. How much time is involved?
The typical commitment required from a P&CP member is expected to average around one day a
month, including preparation time. Meetings will generally be held during normal office hours at
varying locations throughout Cambridgeshire.
All P&CP members will receive an induction and other appropriate training to support them in their
role and you will be expected to participate in this.
8. Are there any rules about conduct or standards?
The role of a member of the P&CP is a public one, and so at all times members must maintain the
highest standards of conduct and ethics. You will be expected to abide by the same rules as local
councillors. To help you understand this your full induction will include details of these and other
requirements.
9. Will I receive any payment?
Members of the P&CP will receive expenses of up to £920 per year.
10. How long will I be a member?
Independent members will initially be appointed for a four year term.
11. What qualities do I need?
The P&CP is an important committee, and as such we need people with the right skills, abilities
and experiences. These include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The ability to think strategically
The ability to make good judgements
The ability to be open to change
The ability to scrutinise and challenge
The ability to be analytical
The ability to communicate effectively

39

APPENDIX 5
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The ability to manage time effectively
Experience of team working
Self confidence
Enthusiasm and drive
Respect for others
Integrity
Leadership
Decisiveness

Please refer to the P&CP Member Role Profile, which is included in the application pack.
12. Who can be an independent member?
Age - You must be at least 18 years old.
Other rules - There are some rules about who cannot be an independent member. The following
may not be co-opted independent members of the P&CP:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

the PCC for the Cambridgeshire Police Area
a member of staff of the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Commissioner
a member of the civilian staff of the Cambridgeshire Constabulary
a police officer
a councillor of Cambridgeshire County Council, Peterborough City Council,
Cambridge City Council, East Cambridgeshire District Council, Fenland District
Council, Huntingdonshire District Council or South Cambridgeshire District Council
a Member of Parliament, a Member of the National Assembly for Wales, a Member
of the Scottish Parliament or a Member of the European Parliament

13. How do I apply?
Complete the application form explaining fully why you wish to become an independent member,
what you would bring to the P&CP and your relevant skills and experience. Please then e-mail your
completed application to sarah.swift@peterborough.gov.uk. If you’re unable to email your form,
please post it to the following address:
Sarah Swift
Communities and Targeted Services
Peterborough City Council
4th Floor
Bayard Place
Peterborough
PE1 1HZ
Applications should be received by 5pm on Friday 22nd August 2014.
14. What happens next?
The P&CP will appoint a selection panel to consider all applications. Its job will be to shortlist, interview
and agree candidates to recommend to the P&CP. The P&CP will then be asked to approve the
recommended candidates.

40

APPENDIX 5
15. How can I find out more?
If you have any questions or would like further information please contact Sarah Swift using the
details shown on the advert.

41

This page is intentionally left blank

42

APPENDIX 6

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel
Policy Context: The arrangements for police governance and accountability in England
1.

Introduction

1.1. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced significant changes in police
governance and accountability, in particular replacing Police Authorities with directly elected
Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs). This note summarises the arrangements and the
respective roles of key players in England (slightly different arrangements apply in London).
1.2. In summary, the public accountability for the delivery and performance of the police service
within each force area is placed into the hands of the PCC on behalf of their electorate. The
PCC draws on their mandate to set and shape the strategic objectives of their force area in
consultation with the Chief Constable. They are accountable to the electorate; the Chief
Constable is accountable to their PCC. The Police and Crime Panel (the Panel) within each
force area is empowered to maintain a regular check and balance on the performance of the
PCC in that context.
2.

The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)

2.1. The PCC within each force area has a statutory duty and electoral mandate to hold the police
to account on behalf of the public.
2.2. The PCC is the recipient of all funding, including the government grant and precept and other
sources of income, related to policing and crime reduction and all funding for a force must
come via the PCC. How this money is allocated is a matter for the PCC in consultation with
the Chief Constable, or in accordance with any grant terms. The Chief Constable will provide
professional advice and recommendations.
2.3. The PCC has the legal power and duty to:
(a) set the strategic direction and objectives of the force through the Police and Crime Plan,
which must have regard to the Strategic Policing Requirement set by the Home Secretary
(b) scrutinise, support and challenge the overall performance of the force including against
the priorities agreed within the Plan
(c) hold the Chief Constable to account for the performance of the force‘s officers and staff
(d) decide the budget, allocating assets and funds to the Chief Constable; and set the precept
for the force area
(e) appoint the Chief Constable
(f) remove the Chief Constable subject to following the process set out in Part 2 of Schedule 8
to the 2011 Act and regulations made under section 50 of the Police Act 1996(a)
(g) maintain an efficient and effective police force for the police area

43

APPENDIX 6
(h) enter into collaboration agreements with other PCCs, other policing bodies and partners
that improve the efficiency or effectiveness of policing for one or more policing bodies or
police forces in consultation with the Chief Constable (where this relates to the functions
of the police force, then it must be with the agreement of the Chief Constable)
(i) provide the local link between the police and communities, working to translate the
legitimate desires and aspirations of the public into action
(j) hold the Chief Constable to account for the exercise of the functions of the office of Chief
Constable and the functions of the persons under the direction and control of the Chief
Constable
(k) publish information specified by the Home Secretary and information that the PCC
considers necessary to enable the people who live in the force area to assess the
performance of the PCC and Chief Constable
(l) comply with all reasonable formal requests from the Panel to attend their meetings
(m) prepare and issue an annual report to the Panel on the PCC‘s delivery against the
objectives set within the Plan
(n) monitor all complaints made against officers and staff, whilst having responsibility for
complaints against the Chief Constable
2.4 The PCC must not fetter the operational independence of the police force and the Chief
Constable who leads it.
2.5 In order to enable the PCC to exercise the functions of their office effectively, they will need
access to information and officers and staff within their force area. Such access to any
information must not be unreasonably withheld or obstructed by the Chief Constable and/or
fetter the Chief Constable‘s direction and control of the force.
2.6 A PCC has wider responsibilities than those relating solely to the police force, including a
specific responsibility for the delivery of community safety and crime reduction.
2.7 The first PCCs were elected on 15th November 2012, and serve until May 2016; thereafter
PCCs will normally hold office for four years.
3.

The Chief Constable

3.1

The Chief Constable is responsible for maintaining the Queen‘s Peace, and has direction
and control over the force‘s officers and staff. The Chief Constable holds office under the
Crown, but is appointed by the PCC.

3.2

The Chief Constable is accountable to the law for the exercise of police powers, and to the
PCC for the delivery of efficient and effective policing, management of resources and
expenditure by the police force. At all times the Chief Constable, their constables and staff,
remain operationally independent in the service of the communities that they serve.

3.3

The Chief Constable is responsible to the public and accountable to the PCC for:
(a) leading the force in a way that is consistent with the attestation made by all constables
on appointment and ensuring that it acts with impartiality
(b) appointing the force‘s officers and staff (after consultation with the PCC, in the case of
officers above the rank of Chief Superintendent and police staff equivalents)
(c) supporting the PCC in the delivery of the strategy and objectives set out in the Police
and Crime Plan
(d) assisting the PCC in planning the force‘s budget
(e) providing the PCC with access to information, officers and staff as required
(f) having regard to the Strategic Policing Requirement when exercising and planning their
policing functions in respect of their force‘s national and international policing
responsibilities

44

APPENDIX 6
(g) notifying and briefing the PCC of any matter or investigation on which the PCC may
need to provide public assurance either alone or in company with the Chief Constable
(PCCs will be subject to the same duties in relation to sensitive material as Government
Ministers)
(h) being the operational voice of policing in the force area and regularly explaining to the
public the operational actions of officers and staff under their command
(i) entering into collaboration agreements with other Chief Constables, other policing
bodies and partners that improve the efficiency or effectiveness of policing
(j) remaining politically independent of their PCC
(k) managing all complaints against the force, its officers and staff, except in relation to the
Chief Constable, and ensuring that the PCC is kept informed in such a way as to enable
the PCC to discharge their statutory obligations in relation to complaints in a regular,
meaningful and timely fashion. Serious complaints and conduct matters must be
passed to the Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) in line with
legislation
(l) exercising the power of direction and control in such a way as is reasonable to enable
their PCC to have access to all necessary information and staff within the force
(m) having day to day responsibility for financial management of the force within the
framework of the agreed budget allocation and levels of authorisation issued by the
PCC.
4.

The Police and Crime Panel (the Panel)

4.1

The Panel provides checks and balances in relation to the performance of the PCC. The
Panel does not scrutinise the Chief Constable - it scrutinises the PCC‘s exercise of their
statutory functions. While the Panel is there to challenge the PCC, it must also exercise its
functions with a view to supporting the effective exercise of the PCC‘s functions. This
includes:
(a) the power of veto, by a two-thirds majority of the total Panel membership, over the level
of the PCC‘s proposed precept
(b) the power of veto, by a two-thirds majority of the total Panel membership, over the
PCC‘s proposed candidate for Chief Constable
(c) the power to ask Her Majesty‘s Inspectors of Constabulary (HMIC) for a professional
view when the PCC intends to dismiss a Chief Constable
(d) the power to review the draft Police and Crime Plan and make recommendations to the
PCC who must have regard to them
(e) the power to review the PCC‘s Annual Report and make reports and recommendations
at a public meeting, which the PCC must attend
(f) the power to require relevant reports and information in the PCC‘s possession (except
those which are operationally sensitive) to enable them to fulfil their statutory
obligations
(g) the power to require the PCC to attend the Panel to answer questions
(h) the power to appoint an acting PCC where the incumbent PCC is incapacitated, resigns
or is disqualified; and
(i) responsibility for complaints about a PCC, although serious complaints and conduct
matters must be passed to the Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) in
line with legislation.

4.2

The Chief Constable retains responsibility for operational matters. If the Panel seek to
scrutinise the PCC on an operational matter, the Chief Constable may be invited to attend
alongside the PCC to offer factual accounts and clarity (if needed) of the Chief Constable‘s
actions and decisions. The accountability of the Chief Constable remains firmly to the PCC
and not to the Panel.

45

APPENDIX 6
5.

The Home Secretary

5.1

The Home Secretary is accountable to Parliament and charged with ensuring the
maintenance of the Queen‘s Peace within all force areas, safeguarding the public and
protecting our national borders and security. The Home Secretary has reserved powers and
legislative tools that enable intervention and direction to all parties, if it is determined by the
Home Secretary that such action is necessary in order to prevent or mitigate risk to the
public or national security. Such powers and tools should be used only as a last resort, and
not to interfere with the democratic will of the electorate within a force area, nor seek to
interfere with the office of constable, unless the Home Secretary is satisfied on the advice
of Her Majesty‘s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) that not to do so would result in a
police force failing or national security being compromised.

5.2

The Home Secretary retains the legal accountability for national security and the role that
the police service plays within the delivery of any national response. The Home Secretary
has a duty to issue a Strategic Policing Requirement that sets out what are, in her view, the
national threats at the time and the appropriate national policing capabilities that are
required to counter them.

6.

Operational Matters

6.1

The operational independence of the police is a fundamental principle of British policing. It
is expected by the Home Secretary that the professional discretion of the police service and
oath of office give surety to the public that this shall not be compromised.

6.2

The police force, and the civilian staff of a police force, is under the direction and control of
the Chief Constable of the force.

6.3

The direction and control of a Chief Constable includes:
(a) the ability to issue a warrant to an attested officer with which that officer may exercise
their police powers
(b) decisions in relation to the appointment and dismissal of officers and staff
(c) decisions concerning the configuration and organisation of policing resources including
whether, or whether not, to deploy police officers and staff
(d) total discretion to investigate or require an investigation into crimes and individuals as
he or she sees fit
(e) decisions taken with the purpose of balancing competing operational needs within the
framework of priorities and objectives set by the PCC
(f) operational decisions to reallocate resource to meet immediate demand; and
(g) the allocation of officers' specific duties and responsibilities within the force area to
meet the strategic objectives set by the PCC.

6.4

The Chief Constable is expected to ensure that their PCC is regularly informed of their
decisions and operational activity in a timely manner so that the PCC can hold the Chief
Constable to account for the totality of policing within their force area, including the
operational delivery of the police service. The direction and control of the Chief Constable
does not just remain under the scrutiny of the PCC but is open to investigation and scrutiny
by the Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) within the parameters of their
terms of reference.

6.5

The PCC and Chief Constable must work together to safeguard the principle of operational
independence, while ensuring that the PCC is not fettered in fulfilling their statutory role.

46

APPENDIX 6
7.

Financial Responsibilities

7.1

The PCC is ultimately accountable to the public for the management of the police fund. The
PCC and Chief Constable share a responsibility to provide effective management of the
policing budget and to secure value for money on behalf of the public that they both serve.

7.2

The Chief Constable has day to day responsibility for managing their allocated budgets
after they have been approved by the PCC. The Chief Constable must ensure that the
financial management of their allocated budget remains consistent with the objectives and
conditions set by the PCC.

47

This page is intentionally left blank

48

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 7

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of: Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council, Police and Crime Panel Lead
Contact Officer(s) – Ian Phillips
Contact Details – Ian.Phillips@peterborough.gov.uk

RULES OF PROCEDURE
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To agree amendments of the Panel’s Rules of Procedure as discussed at the meeting on 19th
June 2014.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Panel is recommended to agree various revisions to the Rules of Procedure which are
outlined in red within the document. The majority of revisions are contained within Section 7 of
the rules which deals with public participation.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

3.1

The Rules of Procedure outlines how the Panel operate.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Panel considered the existing Rules of Procedure at its annual meeting on 19th June.2014.
The Panel felt that section 7 of the Rules of Procedure detailing public participation required
amending to provide greater clarity and transparency. There are also a number of grammatical
and formatting errors throughout the document which have been addressed.
The report has now been amended and is presented back to the Panel for endorsement.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

The Panel is required at its Annual Meeting to review the Rules of Procedure.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

N/a

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

N/a

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

If the Panel agree to the amendments the revised Rules of Procedure will be adopted going
forward.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1

None
.

49

10.

APPENDICES

10.1

Rules of Procedure

50

Updated 21/02/2013

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel
Rules of Procedure
1.0

General

1.1

In this document:
• the “Panel” is the Police and Crime Panel for the Cambridgeshire Police Force;
• the “Secretariat” is the financial, administrative, scrutiny and other officer support
to the Panel;
• the “Host Authority” is the council which is host to the Secretariat at the relevant
time;
• the “Act” is the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011;
• the “Panel Arrangements Document” is the document which sets out the
agreement of all 7 Authorities on the overarching framework for how the Panel
will operate;
• the “Rules” are the rules as set out in this Rules of Procedure Document.

1.2

These Rules of Procedure (“the Rules”) are made by the Panel pursuant to Schedule
6, paragraph 25, of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the ‘Act’).

1.3

The Police and Crime Panel (‘the Panel’) will be conducted in accordance with the
Rules. The Rules should be read and considered in conjunction with the Panel
Arrangements.

1.4

The Rules shall be reviewed annually at the Panel’s Annual Meeting. In the first year
of operation amendments may be made mid-year to take into account a
Memorandum of Understanding between the Panel and the newly elected Police and
Crime Commissioner; and at any time may be updated should regulations require.

1.5

The Rules shall not be amended unless written notification of the amendment/s
required are received by the Panel Secretariat not less than fifteen working days
prior to the Panel meeting. No amendment may be considered by the Panel which
does not comply with the Act, relevant Regulations or statutory guidance.

1.6

If there is any conflict in interpretation between these Rules and the Act or
Regulations made under the Act, the Act and Regulations will prevail. The Monitoring
Officer of the Host Authority will have the final ruling as to the interpretation of legal
matters.

1.7

Where the Rules do not explicitly address an issue the Standing Orders from the
Host Authority will apply.

1.8

All Panel members will be subject to a Member Code of Conduct which for elected
members will be those of their own Council; co-opted members will be subject to the
Code of Conduct of the Host Authority provided that the Panel may agree to adopt

51

Updated 21/02/2013

such additional protocols as it thinks fit.
2.0

Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman

2.1

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Panel shall be elected from amongst the
members of the Panel. The election will take place annually at the Annual Meeting of
the Panel, which will normally be held in June of each year.

2.2

Save for the requirement for re-election; there is no maximum term length for the
Chairman or Vice-Chairman positions.

2.3

The positions will be elected by those members present at the Annual Meeting by a
simple majority vote.

2.4

The Vice-Chairman will preside in the absence of the Chairman and, if neither is
present, the Panel will appoint a Chairman from among the remaining members for
the purposes of that meeting.

3.0

Resignation and removal of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman

3.1

The Chairman and/or Vice-Chairman may be removed by a vote of no confidence by
a simple majority vote at a formal meeting of the Panel.

3.2

In the event of the resignation or removal of the Chairman or Vice-Chairman an
election for the position will be held at the next meeting of the Panel.

4.0

Panel Meetings

4.1

The Panel will hold at least four Ordinary Meetings per year to carry out its functions.
The calendar of meetings will normally be agreed by the Panel at its Annual Meeting.
Ordinary Meetings will not be held in April or May.

4.2

Extraordinary Meetings may also be called by the Chairman or by any four members
of the Panel or by the Monitoring Officer of the Host Authority.

4.3

Written notice must be given at least 10 working days before an Extraordinary
Meeting (unless the Chairman agrees that there are special reasons for an urgent
meeting) and the meeting must then be held within 20 working days of that notice.
(or the Vice-Chairman in the unavoidable absence of the Chairman)

4.4

Any request for an Extraordinary Meeting of the Panel must specify the particular
item of business for which the Extraordinary Meeting is to be called.

4.5

The Panel will determine the location and timing of its meetings, bearing in mind the
principle that meetings should be rotated across the Cambridgeshire area.

4.6

Ordinary Meetings will take place in accordance with a work programme agreed by
the Panel, and will start at the time decided by the Panel. The maximum length of a
meeting shall normally be three hours, however meetings would normally be
expected to last no longer than two hours.

4.7

The agenda to be followed at Ordinary Meetings will be as follows:
1. to receive apologies for absence;
2. to receive any declarations of interest from members;

52

Updated 21/02/2013

3. to approve the minutes of the last meeting;
4. to receive the minutes of Sub-Committees and Task Groups and any
reports submitted to the Panel by those Sub-Committees and Task
Groups; and
5. to receive any questions or petitions from members of the public in
accordance with paragraph 7;
6. to consider written and verbal reports from officers and Panel members;
and
7. items requested by members of the min accordance with 4.11.
4.8

The only business to be conducted at an Extraordinary Meeting of the Panel will be
to choose a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent or
otherwise unable to preside and to consider the matter specified in the request to call
an Extraordinary Meeting. No other business may be conducted at the meeting
unless the Panel otherwise resolve.

4.9

The Panel Agenda, and accompanying papers, will normally be issued to Panel
members at least 5 working days before the meeting. It will also be published on the
Panel’s website and by sending copies to each Panel member, and publicised by
any other means the Panel considers appropriate. Papers will normally be sent by
email.

4.10

The Secretariat will endeavour to co-ordinate the circulation of papers as early as
possible to enable members to have as much time as possible to consider the issues
before the meeting.

The scheduling of ad-hoc agenda items
4.11

Any member of the Panel shall be entitled to give notice to the Secretariat that he or
she wishes an item relevant to the functions of the Panel to be included on the
agenda following the existing scheduled items of business. Items will normally be
considered at the next Ordinary Meeting of the Panel, providing that the following
conditions apply:
a)

At least 15 working days written notice is given to the Secretariat (The Police
and Crime Commissioner (PCC) is required to be given 10 working days
notice therefore this timing allows for discussions prior to this).

b)

The item must be relevant to the remit of the Panel, as set out in the Panel
Arrangements Document.

c)

The item must not have been already considered within the last six months by
the Panel.

4.12

In the event of a dispute on whether the conditions listed above apply, the Monitoring
Officer of the Host Authority will advise the Chairman and Panel. The Chairman’s
decision shall be final.

4.13

Where the conditions above apply and the agenda item is discussed, the Panel may
consider at this point whether any further action is needed in terms of further agenda
time; investigation outside of the meeting; or a written response or information from
the PCC.

53

Updated 21/02/2013

5.0

Quorum

5.1

A meeting of the Panel cannot take place unless at least one third of the
membership of the Panel is present.

6.0

Voting

6.1

Unless agreed by consensus, a decision is taken by a majority of those present and
voting.

6.2

Voting is generally by a show of hands unless a named vote is called for by a
member of the Panel.

6.3

If a Panel member arrives at the meeting before the casting of votes on any item has
been commenced he/she is entitled to vote on that item.

6.4

Immediately after a vote is taken any Panel member may ask for it to be recorded in
the minutes that he/she voted for or against the question, or that he/she abstained.

6.5

The Chairman of the Panel, or other person presiding, shall have a second and/or
casting vote where votes for and against a proposal are equal. There shall be no
restriction on the manner in which the casting vote is exercised.

7.0

Public Participation

7.1

Members of the public may attend all meetings subject only to the exceptions in the
Access to Information Standing Orders. The Police and Crime Panel may also invite
other people to address it, discuss issues of local concern and/or answer questions.
It may, for example, wish to hear from residents, stakeholders, councillors who are
not members of the panel and officers in other parts of the public sector and may
invite such people to attend.

7.2

Part of the order of business at the meetings shall be designated for community
involvement. This time allowed for this section of the meeting shall be up to 30
minutes. During this part of the meeting there shall be provision for:
•
•

Questions from the public; and
The receipt of petitions.

Questions
7.3

A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it in writing, by
facsimile transmission or by electronic mail to the Secretariat not later than 12
noon, five working days before the day of the Panel meeting (not including the
day of the meeting itself). Each question must give the name and address of the
questioner and must name or clearly identify the member to whom it is to be put.
Copies of all questions will be circulated to members in advance of the meeting.

7.4

If the Chairman decides that a matter is urgent he or she can allow a question
without having received notice, as at paragraph 7.3, provided a copy of the question
is delivered to the Secretariat not later than 10am on the day of the meeting. In such
circumstances, the Chairman shall have discretion as to the order in which it is
presented to the meeting.

54

Updated 21/02/2013

7.5

No person may submit more than two questions to a Panel meeting and no more
than two such questions may be asked on behalf of one organisation.

7.6

If the Secretariat feels that a question is:
(a) not about a matter for which the Panel has a responsibility;
(b) is not a matter for the Commissioner
(c) illegal, improper, irregular, frivolous or offensive;
(d) substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of the
Panel in the past six months; or
(e) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information;
He/she shall inform the Chairman who will then decide whether or not to allow the
question to be put. If the Chairman decides not to allow a question his or her
reasons will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and will not be open to
debate.

7.7

The Secretariat can edit any question provided the person asking the question is
consulted about any alteration. The Secretariat will enter each question in a book
open to public inspection and will immediately send a copy of the question to the
person to whom it is to be put. In addition, a copy of all questions received and the
subsequent response from the Panel will be published on the Panel’s website.

7.8

If a questioner who has submitted a written question is unable to be present at a
Panel meeting, the Panel shall provide a written response. Where possible, the
written response will be available for public inspection at the meeting. However,
where this is not possible, a written response will be sent to the questioner within ten
days of the meeting. Both the question and response will be published on the
Panel’s website and added as an annex to the minutes.

7.9

A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one supplementary
question without notice to the member who has replied to his or her original question.
A supplementary question must arise directly out of the original question or the reply
and be directed to clarifying the reply. The Chairman may reject a supplementary
question on any of the grounds in paragraph 7.6 above. One minute is allowed for
putting a supplementary question.

7.10

An answer can take any of the following forms:
(a)
(b)
(c)

a direct oral answer;
a reference to a publicly available document if it answers the question;
if it would not be practicable or appropriate to answer a question orally the
member will supply a written answer to the questioner within 10 days.

7.11

The person asked the question may refuse to answer but must give his or her
reasons for doing so. Two minutes are allowed for answering a supplementary
question.

7.12

Any questions not fully answered at the end of the allotted period will be answered in
writing within ten days and published on the Panel’s website.

7.13

A summary of the key points of questions asked on notice and replies given will be
produced after each meeting as an annex to the minutes.

55

Updated 21/02/2013

Petitions
7.14

Members and residents can present petitions.

7.15

Every petition must be polite and must be relevant to the responsibilities of Panel.

7.16

The petitioner must say what the petition is about without commenting;

7.17

Petitions must contain at least 3 signatures. To present a petition, the Secretariat
must receive written notice and the wording of the petition no later than 4 pm on the
day before the meeting. No more than two people must present the petition and say
what it is about, without commenting. It will be referred to the Secretariat for
consideration.

7.18

There will be no debate about a petition when it is presented.

7.19

A report to the Panel about the action taken on the petition will be made no later than
the second Ordinary Meeting of the Panel following the meeting when the petition
was presented.
General Participation

7.20

Any further involvement from the public at the meetings of the Panel will be at the
discretion of the Chairman, including involvement in any debate and the asking of
questions, without prior notice, during the debate on items on the agenda.

7.21

Members of the public are entitled to record the meetings of the Panel using audio
and visual recording equipment. If the Chairman feels that the recording is
obstructing, disturbing or disrupting the proceedings of the meeting, the recording
must cease.

8.0

Work Programme

8.1

The Panel will be responsible for setting its work programme. In doing so it shall
have regard to:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

the requirement to undertake the functions and responsibilities of the Panel as
set out in the Act including consideration of the necessary timings to meet its
legal responsibilities;
the priorities defined by the PCC;
the views of the public on Police and Crime matters;
the views of key partners, including Probation, Health, Community Safety
Partnerships; and relevant county, district council or town or parish councils
the views of its members and advisers; and
the resources available to support the delivery of the work programme.

9.0

Sub-Committees

9.1

The Panel may set up Sub-Committees to undertake specified functions of the
Panel. The role of Sub-Committees is to carry out delegated Panel functions,
excluding those functions that are not able to be delegated under the Act. SubCommittees may formally take decisions as delegated to them by the Panel.

9.2

The work to be undertaken by a Sub-Committee will be agreed by the Panel. In
commissioning the work the Panel will agree as part of the scoping document the

56

Updated 21/02/2013

following: (See 10.2 – for example of punctuation after text.
a) terms of reference and delegations
b) purpose/objectives
c) resources
d) timescales for completing the work and reporting back
e) membership
9.3

The Panel shall appoint Sub-Committees. The Chairman of the Panel may make a
recommendation to the Panel on membership.

9.4

The maximum size of a Sub-Committee shall be seven members. The minimum size
is three members. Size shall be determined on a case-by-case basis at the point that
the review is commissioned.

9.5

The membership of Sub-Committees shall be confined to members of the Panel.

9.6

In determining the membership of a Sub-Committee the Panel shall give, so far as
practicable, consideration to the duties in the Act to consider political balance;
geographical balance; and the skills and expertise of members.

9.7

Sub-Committees shall report back to the Panel, and the minutes of the SubCommittee shall be received by the Panel.

10.0

Task Groups

10.1

The role of Task Groups is to undertake time-limited investigations into particular
issues, such as a scrutiny topic review. They are informal working groups, and as
such have no decision-making power. Task Groups will report back upon the
completion of their work with a report and recommendations to the Panel.

10.2

The work to be undertaken by a Task Group will be agreed by the Panel. In
commissioning the work the Panel will agree as part of the scoping document the
following:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

terms of reference;
purpose/objectives;
approach to gathering evidence;
resources to support the review;
timescales for completing the work and reporting back; and
membership.

10.3

Task Groups can only make reports or recommendations to the Panel. The Panel
will consider reports it receives, and if agreed, such reports may be adopted as the
Panel’s report.

10.4

The Panel will appoint Task Groups. The Chairman of the Panel may make a
recommendation to the Panel on the membership.

10.5

The maximum size of a Task Group shall be agreed by the Panel at the point that
the review is commissioned. The minimum size is three members.

10.6

The Panel shall appoint a Chairman of the Task Group from within the membership
of the Panel. The Chairman of the Panel may make a recommendation on whom to
appoint.

57

Updated 21/02/2013

10.7

The composition of a Task Group will be determined by the role it is to perform.
Whilst issues of political and geographical balance may be taken into account, to
help the effectiveness of the group consideration may also be given to:
a)
b)
c)
d)

skills and expertise
availability of members to undertake the work
interest and commitment
Local knowledge

10.8

The Panel may choose to co-opt non-Panel members onto a Task Group if it is
considered that they possess skills, expertise, or a perspective which will assist the
Group in its work. Co-opted members on a Task Group are non-voting members of
the Group.

10.9

The following eligibility rules will apply to non-voting co-opted members of Task
Groups:
a)
b)

must live and/or work in the Cambridgeshire Police Force area; and
must be able to provide expertise/layperson’s perspective to assist the group
in carrying out its scrutiny function.

11.0

Panel Reports and Recommendations—General

11.1

Where the Panel makes a report to the PCC, the PCC will publish the report or
recommendations on its website, except where the information is exempt or
confidential as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

11.2

The Panel may require the PCC within 20 working days (or within such other period
as is indicated in these Rules) of the date on which s/he receives the Panel’s report
or recommendations to:
a) consider the report or recommendations;
b) respond to the Panel indicating what (if any) action the PCC proposes to take;
c) publish the response from the PCC where the Panel has published the report or
recommendations.

11.3

The Panel will formally make requests to the PCC or issue other statements by way
of reports and recommendations. As the Panel is a scrutiny body, rather than an
executive decision-making committee, motions or resolutions will not be considered
by the Panel.

Procedure for Agreeing Reports and Recommendations
11.4

Recommendations to the PCC from the Panel will be made as an outcome of a
scrutiny review or as a result of an agenda item discussion.

11.5

As a cross-party scrutiny committee, reports and recommendations to the PCC
should normally be agreed by consensus rather than a formal vote. Where this is not
possible a vote may be taken, under the voting procedure outlined above. This
includes the option of a Panel member requesting that a named vote is taken at the
meeting to ensure that views are minuted.

58

Updated 21/02/2013

Minority Reporting
11.6

In exceptional circumstances, one minority report in relation to a report prepared by
a Task Groups may be prepared and submitted for consideration with the majority
report to the PCC. Where a member or members wish to submit a minority report the
Chairman of the Panel and Secretariat should be notified as soon as possible in
advance of the Panel meeting, normally 10 working days notice should be given
depending on the timing of the Task Group’s consideration of its majority report.

11.7

The PCC’s responsibilities and remit relate to the Committee as a whole, therefore
the PCC will respond to the Committee as a whole and not to individual members of
the Panel. This means that for the purposes of communication to the public,
stakeholders and the PCC the majority report represents the viewpoint of the Panel.
The PCC will be required only to respond to the majority report.

12.0

PCC and others giving account

12.1

The presumption will be that the PCC will be required to attend all formal Police and
Crime Panel meetings (Ordinary and Extraordinary) to answer questions which may
be necessary to assist the Panel in discharging its functions, unless the Panel
decides that this is not necessary and informs the PCC that he/she will not be
required.

12.2

The PCC shall be notified by the Secretariat of the Panel of the Annual Work
Programme of the Panel, including meeting dates.

12.3

In setting the Annual Work Programme the Panel should identify and consider where
possible what papers will be required, and if any supporting staff from the
Secretariat, Police or otherwise are likely to be needed in addition to the PCC, in
order to give as much notice as possible.

12.4

Where a new agenda item is scheduled for a meeting that is not included within the
work programme and the PCC (and staff/or Chief Constable) is required to attend,
the Secretariat will inform the relevant persons of the nature of the agenda item and
any written information that is required as soon as possible.

12.5

At least 15 working days notice will be given of the new agenda item to the PCC and
any requirement to provide written information (owing to the access of information
requirements this equates to 10 working days notice for the provision of written
information).

12.6

In exceptional circumstances, and where there is agreement between the PCC and
Chairman of the Panel, shorter notice may be required for either attendance or
papers.

12.7

If the Panel requires the PCC to attend before the Panel, the Panel may also request
the Chief Constable to attend on the same occasion to answer any questions which
appear to the Panel to be necessary in order for it to carry out its functions.

12.8

In undertaking its functions, the Panel may invite persons other than those referred
to above to attend Panel meetings, to address the meeting, discuss issues of local
concern and/or answer questions. This may, for example and not exclusively, include
residents, stakeholders, Council members who are not members of the Panel and
officers from other parts of the public sector.

59

Updated 21/02/2013

13.0

Special Functions

13.1

The Special Functions of the Panel, as set out in the Panel Arrangements, are those
functions which are conferred on the Panel in relation to:
Looks as if alignment needs adjusting in b) to e) below
a) the review of the Police and Crime Plan as required by Section 28(3) of the Act;
b) the review of the Annual Report as required by Section 28 (4) of the Act;
c) the review of senior appointments in accordance with Paragraphs 10 and 11 of
Schedule 1 of the Act;
d) the review and potential veto of the proposed precept in accordance with
Schedule 5 of the Act;
e) the review and potential veto of appointment of the Chief Constable in
accordance with Part 1 the Act.

14.0

Police and Crime Plan

14.1

The Panel is a statutory consultee on the development of the PCC’s Police and
Crime Plan and will receive a copy of the draft Police and Crime Plan, or a draft of
any variation to it, from the PCC.

14.2

The Panel will:
a) hold a meeting to review the draft Police and Crime Plan (or a variation to it); and
b) report or make recommendations on the draft Plan which the PCC must take into
account.

15.0

Annual Report

15.1

The PCC must publish an Annual Report about the exercise of his/her functions in
the financial year and progress in meeting police and crime objectives in the year.
The report must be sent to the Panel for consideration.

15.2

The Panel must comment upon the Annual Report of the PCC, and for that purpose
must:
a) arrange for a meeting of the Panel to be held as soon as practicable after the
Panel receives the Annual Report;
b) require the PCC to attend the meeting to present the Annual Report and answer
such questions about the Annual Report as the Panel think appropriate;
c) make a report and/or recommendations on the Annual Report to the PCC.

16.0

Proposed precept

16.1

The Panel will receive notification from the PCC of the precept that s/he are
proposing to issue for the coming financial year. The Panel will arrange for a meeting
of the Panel to be held as soon as practicable after the Panel receives the proposed
precept and make a report including recommendations.

16.2

Having considered the precept, the Panel will either:
a) support the precept without qualification or comment; or
b) support the precept and make recommendations; or
c) veto the proposed precept by a two thirds majority of those members present at
the time when the decision is made.

60

Updated 21/02/2013

16.3

If the Panel vetoes the proposed precept, the report to the PCC must include a
statement that the panel has vetoed the proposed precept and give reasons for that
decision. The Panel will require a response from the PCC within seven days to the
report and any such recommendations.

17.0

Senior Appointments

17.1

The Panel must review the proposed appointment by the PCC of the Chief
Constable, Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Police and Crime
PCC.

17.2

The Panel will receive notification of the proposed appointment from the PCC, which
will include:
a)
b)
c)
d)

the name of the candidate;
the criteria used to assess suitability of the candidate;
why the candidate satisfies the criteria; and
the terms and conditions proposed for the appointment.

17.3

The Panel must hold a confirmation hearing for all proposed senior appointments as
outlined in 17.1 within 15 working days of receipt of notification by the PCC. It must
also report to the PCC at the same time with its recommendations. The 15 working
days will not include the post-election period.

17.4

The confirmation hearings will be held in public and the candidates will be
questioned in relation to their appointment. Candidates must attend, either in person
or by video link.

17.5

Following the hearing, the Panel will make a report and/or recommendations to the
PCC on the proposed appointment. The PCC must respond in writing within 20
working days confirming whether the recommendation has been accepted or not.

17.6

In relation to the proposed appointment of the Chief Constable, the Panel is required
to make recommendations to the PCC and has the power to veto the appointment.
Following the hearing, the Panel will be asked to:
a) support the appointment without qualification or comment;
b) support the appointment with associated recommendations, or
c) veto the appointment of the Chief Constable (a two thirds majority is required of
those members present at the time when the decision is made.) (This may be
subject to change following Home Office Regulations)

17.7

If the Panel vetoes an appointment, it must set out its reasons for doing so in a
report to the PCC and the PCC must not then appoint that candidate as Chief
Constable.

18.0

Suspension of the Police and Crime Commissioner

18.1

The Panel may suspend the PCC if it appears to the Panel that:
a) the PCC is charged in the United Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of
Man with an offence; and
b) the offence is one which carries a maximum term of imprisonment exceeding two
years.

61

Updated 21/02/2013

18.2

This decision will be taken at a formal Panel meeting via a majority vote.

18.3

The suspension of the PCC ceases to have effect upon the occurrence of the
earliest of these events:
a) the charge being dropped;
b) the PCC being acquitted of the offence;
c) the PCC being convicted of the offence but not being disqualified under Section
66 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 by virtue of the
conviction; or
d) the termination of the suspension by the Police and Crime Panel.

18.4

In this section references to an offence which carries a maximum term of
imprisonment exceeding two years are references to:
a) an offence which carries such a maximum term in the case of a person who has
attained the age of 18 years, or
b) an offence for which, in the case of such a person, the sentence is fixed by law
as life imprisonment.

19.0

Suspension and Removal of the Chief Constable

19.1

The Panel will receive notification if the PCC suspends the Chief Constable.

19.2

The PCC must also notify the Panel in writing of his/her proposal to call upon the
Chief Constable to retire or resign together with a copy of the reasons given to the
Chief Constable in relation to that proposal.

19.3

The PCC must provide the Panel with a copy of any representations from the Chief
Constable about the proposal to call for his/her resignation or retirement.

19.4

If the PCC is still proposing to call upon the Chief Constable to resign, she/he must
notify the Panel accordingly (the ‘further notification’).

19.5

Within 30 days from the date of receiving the further notification the Panel must
make a recommendation in writing to the PCC as to whether or not s/he should call
for the retirement or resignation. Before making any recommendation the Panel may
consult the Chief Inspector of Constabulary, and must hold a Scrutiny hearing.

19.6 The Scrutiny hearing which must be held by the Panel is a Panel meeting in private
to which the PCC and Chief Constable are entitled to attend to make representations
in relation to the proposal to call upon the Chief Constable to retire or resign.
Appearance at the Scrutiny hearing can be by attending in person or video link.
19.7 The PCC may not call upon the Chief Constable to retire or resign until the end of
the scrutiny process which will occur:
(a)

at the end of 30 days from the Panel having received notification if the Panel
has not by then given the PCC a recommendation as to whether or not
she/he should call for the retirement or resignation; or

(b)

when the PCC notifies the Panel of a decision about whether she/he accepts
the Panel’s recommendations in relation to resignation or retirement.

62

Updated 21/02/2013

19.8

The PCC must consider the Panel’s recommendation and may accept or reject it,
notifying the Panel accordingly.

20.0

Appointment of an Acting Police and Crime Commissioner

20.1

The Panel must meet to appoint a person to be acting PCC within 15 working days
if:
a) no person holds the office of PCC;
b) the PCC is incapacitated (i.e. unable to fulfil the functions of PCC) which is a
matter for the Panel to determine; or
c) the PCC is suspended.

20.2

In the event that the Panel has to appoint an Acting PCC it will meet to determine the
process for appointment which will comply with these Rules of Procedure and any
legal requirements.

20.3

The Panel may appoint a person as Acting PCC only if the person is a member of
the PCC’s staff at the time of the appointment.

20.4

In appointing a person as Acting PCC in a case where the PCC is incapacitated, the
Panel must have regard to any representations made by the PCC in relation to the
appointment.

20.5

The appointment of an Acting PCC will cease to have effect upon the earliest of the
following:
a)
b)
c)
d)

the election of a person as PCC;
the termination by the Panel, or by the Acting PCC, of the appointment of the
Acting PCC;
where the Acting PCC is appointed because the PCC is incapacitated, the
PCC ceases to be incapacitated; or
where the Acting PCC is appointed because the PCC is suspended, the PCC
ceases to be suspended.

20.6

Where the Acting PCC is appointed because the PCC is incapacitated or
suspended, the Acting PCC’s appointment does not terminate because a vacancy
occurs in the office of PCC.

21.0

Complaints

21.1

Complaints which involve allegations which may amount to a criminal offence by the
PCC or senior office holders are dealt with by the Independent Police Complaints
Commission (the ‘IPCC’).

21.2 The Panel may however be involved in the informal resolution of certain other
complaints against the PCC and Deputy PCC, where they are not being investigated
by the IPCC or cease to be investigated by the IPCC.
21.3 The Panel shall have a complaints procedure for complaint handling that shall be set
out in a protocol.

22.0 Further Guidelines/Protocols

63

Updated 21/02/2013

22.1 The Panel may agree further guidelines/protocols to assist it in carrying out its
business so long as these are in accordance with the Rules of Procedure, Panel
Arrangements and legal requirements. Further guidance and protocols may cover:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Memoranda of Understanding between the PCC and Panel.
Communications Protocols (including media handling).
Public Involvement.
Complaints Procedure.
PCP and Local Scrutiny Committees’ Protocol.

64

Updated 21/02/2013

ANNEX A: ACCESS TO INFORMATION STANDING ORDERS
1.0

SCOPE

1.1

These standing orders apply to all formal meetings of the Police and Crime Panel.

1.2

These rules do not affect any additional rights to information contained elsewhere in
this constitution or granted by law.

2.0

RIGHTS TO ATTEND MEETINGS

2.1

Members of the public may attend all meetings, subject only to the exceptions in
these standing orders.

3.0

NOTICES OF MEETING

3.1

The Secretariat will give at least ten clear days notice of any meeting by posting
details of the meeting at the principal offices of the Host Authority and on the
Internet.

4.0

ACCESS TO AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE THE MEETING

4.1

The Secretariat will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the public
available for inspection at the designated offices at least five clear days before the
meeting. If an item is added to the agenda later, the Monitoring Officer of the Host
Authority shall make each report available to the public as soon as the report is
completed and sent to members, and will ensure that it will be open to inspection
from the time the item was added to the supplementary agenda.

5.0

SUPPLY OF COPIES

5.1

The Secretariat will supply hard copies of:
a) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;
b) any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the nature of the
items in the agenda; and
c) if the Monitoring Officer of the Host Authority thinks fit, copies of any other
documents supplied to members in connection with an item to any person on
payment of a charge for postage and any other costs under the Host Authority’s
Charging Policy. Under the Freedom of Information Act, information would be
supplied free until these costs go over the threshold of £450, when a charge
would be levied.

6.0

ACCESS TO MINUTES ETC AFTER THE MEETING

6.1

The Secretariat will make available hard copies of the following for six years after a
meeting:
a) the minutes of the meeting, or, where appropriate, records of decisions taken,
together with reasons, for all meetings of the Panel, excluding any part of the
minutes of proceedings when the meeting was not open to the public or which
disclose exempt or confidential information;
b) a summary of any proceedings not open to the public where the minutes open to
inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and coherent record;
c) the agenda for the meeting; and

65

Updated 21/02/2013

d) reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public.
7.0

BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1

List of background papers: Reports will include a list (prepared by the Secretariat) of
those documents (called background papers) relating to the subject matter of the
report which in their opinion disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an
important part of the report is based; and which have been relied on to a material
extent in preparing the report but does not include published works or those which
disclose exempt or confidential information.

7.2

Public inspection of background papers: The Council will make available for public
inspection via its website for six years after the date of the meeting one copy of each
of the documents on the list of background papers.

7.3

Use of media technology at Panel Meetings: At the discretion of the Chairman of the
Panel recording of meetings and use of media technology will be permitted provided
that it does not release information that the Secretariat has identified as being
confidential under the Access to Information Regulations.

7.4

The Secretariat supports the use of networking sites to disseminate information
during their meetings, provided that confidential information as outlined above is not
deliberately or inadvertently disclosed.

8.0

SUMMARY OF THE PUBLIC’S RIGHTS

8.1

A written summary of the public’s rights to attend meetings and to inspect and copy
documents is available for inspection at the Principal Offices of the Host Authority.

9.0

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO MEETINGS
Confidential or Exempt information – requirement to exclude public

9.1

The public must be excluded from an item at a meeting whenever it is likely to be
confidential in view of the nature of the business.

9.2

Meaning of confidential information: Confidential information means information
given to the Panel by a Government Department on terms which forbid its public
disclosure or information which cannot be publicly disclosed by reason of a Court
Order or any enactment.

9.3

The public may be excluded from an item at a meeting whenever it is likely in view of
the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that
exempt information would be disclosed.

9.4

Meaning of exempt information: Subject to the test of the Public Interest set out
below, information is exempt information where it falls within any of the following
categories:
1 Information relating to an individual.
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the public authority holding the information), except where the
information is required to be registered under certain prescribed statutes including

66

Updated 21/02/2013

the Companies Act 1985 and the Charities Act 1993.“Financial or business affairs”
includes contemplated, as well as past or current activities.
4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the Authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or
office holders under, the Authority. “Labour relations matter” means any matter
which may be the subject of a trade dispute, or any dispute about any such matter
(i.e. a matter specified in paragraphs (a) to (g) of section 218(1) of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.)
5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.
6 Information which reveals that the Authority proposes:
a) to give under any enactment a notice, under which or by virtue of which
requirements are to be imposed on a person; or
b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.
7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.
9.5

Public interest test: Information falling within any of categories 1-7 set out above,
which is not prevented from being exempt because it falls within category 3, and is
required to be registered under the prescribed enactments is exempt information if,
and so long as, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

10.0

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO REPORTS

10.1

The Monitoring Officer of the Host Authority may exclude access by the public to a
report which, in his or her opinion, relates to an item during which, in accordance
with this Access to Information Standing Order, the meeting is likely not to be open
to the public; or, as the case may be, was not open to the public. Such reports will be
marked “Not for publication”, together with the category of information likely to be
disclosed.

11.0

RECORD OF DECISIONS

11.1

After any formal meeting of the Panel, the Secretariat will produce a record of every
decision taken at that meeting as soon as practicable. The record will include a
statement of the reasons for each decision and, where appropriate, any alternative
options considered and rejected at that meeting. All such decisions will be recorded
in the Panel’s minutes and published accordingly.

67

This page is intentionally left blank

68

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No 8

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Contact Officer – Dorothy Gregson
Contact Details – cambs-pcc@cambs.pnn.police.uk 0300 333 3456

INTERIM CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER ARRANGEMENTS
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform the Police and Crime Panel (the “Panel”) on the interim
Chief Finance Officer arrangements, until a permanent appointment is made and in post.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To note the report.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (PRSRA) under paragraph 6 of Schedule
1 requires every Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) outside London to appoint a Chief
Finance Officer. An identical duty under paragraph 4 of Schedule 2 and paragraph 1 of
Schedule 4 to the PRSRA, the Chief Constable is also required to appoint a CFO. The PRSRA
requires both CFOs to comply with relevant provisions within the Local Government Acts.

3.2

Since I took office on 22nd November 2012 the CFO has been a permanent established post
within my Office, undertaken by a member my team. The position became vacated on 30th
September 2014. At this time, the Director of Finance and Resources for Cambridgeshire
Constabulary (the “Constabulary”) agreed to undertake the role and responsibilities of the PCC
CFO until a suitable replacement was appointed.

3.3

An interim Head of Finance was appointed to my office on 3rd February 2014. The main
function was to develop a common Bedfordshire, Cambridgeshire and Hertfordshire Scheme of
Governance, provide support to myself, my Chief Executive and PCC CFO and to provide
advice and guidance as appropriate whilst allowing the dual role of Director of Finance and
Resources for the Chief Constable/CFO for the PCC to continue.

3.4

The interim Head of Finance, (a CIPFA qualified accountant) has previous experience working in
the Police and Crime Commissioner environment, having occupied the Chief Finance Officer
Role was appointed the Interim Chief Finance Officer on 8th May 2014. A decision notice was
presented to the panel at its meeting on 19th June 2014.

4.

ROLE AND DUTIES

4.1

The CFO’s statutory responsibilities are set out in: Paragraph 6 of Schedule 1 to the PRSRA,
Sections 112 and Section 114 Local Government Finance Act 1988 (formal powers to safeguard
lawfulness and propriety in expenditure); The Accounts and Audit Regulations 201; and within
Financial Management Code of Practice, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and

69

Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance and Codes of Practice.
4.2

My Scheme of Governance is published on my website. It can be found under Transparency
Information/Governance Information. This is a common scheme with Bedfordshire and
Hertfordshire Police and Crime Commissioners. This scheme details the role and responsibilities
of the CFO.

4.3

The Scheme of Governance details the CFO as having to be a member of a prescribed body
such as Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies with the responsibility for proper
financial administration and a personal fiduciary responsibility to the local council taxpayer.

4.4

Under the Scheme of Governance the CFO is also responsible for :
•

Ensuring that the financial affairs of the PCC are properly administered and that Financial
Regulations are observed and kept up to date;

•

Ensuring regularity, propriety and Value for Money in the use of public funds;

•

Ensuring that the funding required to finance agreed programmes is available from
Central Government, council tax precept, other contributions and recharges;

•

Reporting to the PCC, the Panel and to the external auditor: any unlawful, or potentially
unlawful, expenditure by the PCC or officers of the Commissioner when it appears that
any expenditure is likely to exceed the resources available to it to meet that expenditure;

•

Advising the PCC on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of financial
reserves;

•

Preparing the annual statement of accounts, in conjunction with the Chief Constable’s
Director of Finance and Resources;

•

Ensuring the provision of an effective internal audit service, in conjunction with the Chief
Constable’s Director of Finance and Resources.

4.5

The CFO, in consultation with the Chief Executive, the Chief Constable’s Director of Finance and
Resources and/or Chief Constable as appropriate, has powers to institute any proceedings or
take any action necessary to safeguard the finances of my office, the Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner and the Constabulary.

5.

RECRUITMENT TO PERMANENT POSITION OF CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

5.1

I am currently undertaking the recruitment for a permanent CFO. Hays Recruitment has been
engaged in this process to identify the best candidates possible for the role.

5.2

There are several steps in the process which involved:
•

Hays Recruitment identifying, targeting and screening potential candidates;

•

The Constabulary’s Director of Finance and Resources, in conjunction with a Hays
representative interviewing potential candidates from a long list, with a view to shortlisting
for a further interview;

•

An interview panel consisting of myself, the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner, my
Chief Executive and the Chief Constable to interview the short listed candidates,
including an “on the day” presentation to the panel members.

70

5.3

Once the above process is complete, I will write to the Panel requesting a meeting to be
convened, within three weeks of the request.

6.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.1

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/contents
Scheme of Governance for Cambridgeshire, Bedfordshire and Hertfordshire PCCs
http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/04/Scheme-of-GovernanceMarch-2014-final-issued.pdf

71

This page is intentionally left blank

72

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME
PANEL

Agenda Item No. 9

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Contact Officer(s) – Dorothy Gregson
Contact Details – cambs-pcc@cambs.pnn.police.uk 0300 333 3456

DECISIONS BY THE COMMISSIONER
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

This report is being presented to the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel to enable it to
review or scrutinise decisions taken by the Police and Crime Commissioner under Section 28 of
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Panel is recommended to indicate whether it would wish to further review and scrutinise
the decisions taken by the Police and Crime Commissioner. In these circumstances further
information would be provided for a future meeting.

2.2

The Panel is asked to note the key decisions to be taken by the Commissioner during the
forthcoming period and the context for these decisions.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

3.1

Item 6, To review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the Police and Crime
Commissioner in connection with the discharge of the Commissioner’s functions.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

This report is presented to enable the Panel to carry out its functions as noted in paragraph 3.
The Panel is required to review or scrutinise decisions made, it is also required to support the
effective exercise of the functions of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

5.

KEY ISSUES

5.1

The following decisions taken by the Commissioner have been notified to the Panel:
Date
12/06/2014

Decision Record
CPCC 2014-0016

12/06/2014

CPCC 2014-017

Decision Summary
To approve the work with Hinchingbrooke Health
Care NHS Trust on a feasibility study for a joint
property scheme on surplus land at Force HQ
and that this is regulated by a Memorandum of
Understanding.
To approve the 2 year continuation of the lease
of 76 Fen Lane, Sawtry to Cambridgeshire Police
Shrievalty Trust (CPST).

73

5.2

The relevant decision records are attached at Appendix 1.

5.3

If the Panel wishes to scrutinise these decisions, further details can be provided for the next
meeting.

6.

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Subject to the Panel’s need for further information or scrutiny on any of the decisions above, it
may be required that further information is submitted to a future meeting of the Panel.

7.

CONSULTATION

7.1

The decisions are in line with the direction set in the Police and Crime Plan. These decision
records have been placed on the Commissioner’s website.

8.

NEXT STEPS

8.1

The Panel members may request further information about the decisions detailed above.

8.2

Future decisions to be taken by the Commissioner will continue to be notified to the Panel. The
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced a number of statutory decisions to
be taken by the Commissioner. Key decisions to 31 March 2015 include:
•
•
•
•

8.3

Any variation to the Police and Crime Plan must be sent to the Police and Crime Panel
to review
Any collaboration agreements
Update to the Financial Regulations
Appointment of Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer, to be notified to the Panel for a
confirmation hearing to be held

These statutory decisions of the Commissioner also require a range of supporting decisions for
the Commissioner and his staff including:
•

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014-18

•

Governance framework 2014-15

•

Annual Governance Statement 2013-14.

8.4

These decisions will be taken against a challenging financial context, for the Commissioner and
Constabulary, but also for key partners. All parties are faced with considering how the budget
gaps can be bridged to make best use of available funding. The Commissioner has pledged to
give priority to frontline and as much visible policing as possible.

9.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act 1985

9.1

Decisions records and background papers detailed at Appendix 1.

10.

APPENDICES

10.1

Appendix 1 - Decision records.

74

Appendix 1

75

To:

Business Coordination Board

From:

Chief Executive

Date:

08 May 2014

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING – HINCHINGBROOKE HEALTH CARE NHS
TRUST (HHCT)
1.

Purpose

1.1

To seek approval to work with HHCT on a feasibility study for a joint property
scheme on surplus land at Force HQ.

2.

Background

2.1

The land amounts to 5ha (12.43 acres) and has previously been considered for
office use (prior to purchasing Chord Business Park) and disposal for
educational use (funding withdrawn from Learning Schools Council).

2.2

Part of the site will be used for the A14 link road if the highway scheme
proceeds.

2.3

The Huntingdon West Area Action Plan was adopted in 2011and recognised
the potential use of the site for employment or institutional use should
Huntingdon Regional College not relocate onto this site.

76

2.4

The Headquarters Title Plan is shown below:

2.5

The developable area is restricted by the proposed link road (construction
planned for September 2016) and tree preservation orders and the below plan
shows the potential impact of these:

77

3

Summary

3.1

The objectives of Stage 1 of the Project with HHCT are the development of a
vision document, a business case and project delivery plan for an innovative
and sustainable ‘community and leisure campus’ enabled by a new residential
community. The masterplan will cover land owned by both the OPCC and
HHTC.

3.2

The key objectives are to:
A. Deliver appropriate development that best meets the needs of the OPCC,
HHCT and the community of Huntingdon.
B. Maximise value (and capital receipts) to support OPCC’s and HHCT’s
Strategic Plans
C. Achieve capital receipts timed to meet the needs of OPCC’s and HHCT’s
Strategic Plans

3.3

It is agreed that HHCT will fund the professional fees for the Stage 1 project.

3.4

It is intended that the Stage 2 project will: Obtain planning permission for the
developments within the master plan; Secure commercial agreements that
deliver best value to both OPCC and HHCT.

3.5

It is proposed to record the joint working arrangement by a Memorandum of
Understanding which:

78

a. Sets up a governance structure to ensure activities are delivered and
actions taken.
b. Encourages communication and information sharing.
c. Ensures resources are available to fulfil responsibilities.
d. Provides for a delivery plan within 3 months.
3.6

The MOU can be terminated by either party subject to three months written
notice.

3.7

The MOU does not establish any partnership or joint venture and has no legal
standing.

3.8

The full details of the MOU are shown in the appendix.

4.

Recommendation

4.1

It is recommended that BCB approve the work with HHCT on a feasibility study
for a joint property scheme on surplus land at Force HQ and that this is
regulated by a Memorandum of Understanding.

BIBLIOGRAPHY
Source
(s)

Document Contact Officer

Location

Estate Management Colin Luscombe (Director of Estates) or Elly Cambridgeshire Police &
McKee(Estates Management Surveyor)
Crime
Commissioner,
– Property Files
01480 422679 (CL) or 01480 422423 (EM)
South
Cambridgeshire
Hall,
Cambourne
Business
Park,
Cambourne, Cambridge,
CB23 6EA

79

80

To:

Business Coordination Board

From:

Chief Executive

Date:

12 June 2014

LEASE RENEWAL: 76 FEN LANE, SAWTRY
1.

Purpose

1.1

To seek approval to renew the lease of part of 76 Fen Lane Sawtry to
Cambridgeshire Police Shrievalty Trust (CPST)

2.

Background

2.1

In 2012 CPST relocated to Sawtry from Alconbury Airfield where the property
they occupied was demolished to make way for the main entrance into the
proposed new development.

2.2

This relocation coincided with the departure of the Rural Crime Action Team
who moved out of Sawtry when they became part of the Centralised
Intelligence Bureau (CIB) towards the end of April 2012.

2.3

Three rooms on the ground floor of Sawtry police office, amounting to
approximately 32 square metres of space, were identified as suitable for
occupation by CPST who have been in occupation for approximately 2 years.

2.4

Video Interview rooms to the first floor are currently retained.

2.5

This short term lease was originally negotiated on the basis that the Estates
Review/Strategy would be making a number of rationalisation proposals.

2.6

After initial discussions the Estates Sub Group agreed to the negotiation of a
further short term renewal of the lease.

2.7

Main heads of terms have now been agreed with CPST and are essentially the
same as those originally negotiated (except for an increase in rent from £2750
to £3250 per annum). They are as follows:

•

Demise: 76 Fen Lane Sawtry; Ground floor offices (Rooms GF02, GF03 and
GF010) with shared use of ancillary areas including toilets, kitchen and
parking.

•

Landlord: Police and Crime Commissioner for Cambridgeshire (PCC).

81

Tenant: Cambridgeshire Police Shrievalty Trust (CPST).

•
•

Rent/Occupation Charge: £3250 per annum payable quarterly in advance
(inclusive of all utilities).

•

Term: 2 year lease contracted out of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 Part II
(no security of tenure) from 23 May 2014.

•

Break Clause: Landlord or tenant to break on 6 months written notice at any
time during the term of the lease.

•

Use: Offices and storage.

•

Assignment/Subletting: Absolute bar on assignment and subletting.

•

Fees: Each party to bear their own costs.

2.8

These heads of terms were supported by the Estates Sub Group on 28 May
2014.

2.9

It should be noted that the occupation charge has once again been agreed on
the basis of 50% of the current on costs for this property (CPST will be
occupying approx. 50% of the space). There is no specific rental element on
top of the on-costs.

3

Summary

3.1

This is an opportunity to continue to support CPST by utilising surplus space
and recovering costs for a property which is under review.

4.

Recommendation

4.1

That the Business Coordination Board approves the renewal of the lease of
part of Sawtry Police Office to CPST from 23 May 2014 at an occupation charge
of
£3250
per
annum.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Source Document(s)

Estate Management – Property Files

Contact Officer

Elly McKee (Estates Management Surveyor), CC
Colin Luscombe (Director of Estates), OPCC

82

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 10

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Contact Officer – Dorothy Gregson
Contact Details - cambs-pcc@cambs.pnn.police.uk 0300 333 3456
COMMISSIONER’S RESPONSE TO HMIC REPORT ON CAMBRIDGESHIRE CONSTABULARY’S
APPROACH TO TACKLING DOMESTIC ABUSE
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this paper is to report to the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel (“the
Panel”) the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
(“the Commissioner’s”) response to
Cambridgeshire Constabulary’s (“the Constabulary”) response to Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of
Constabulary’s (HMIC) Report ‘Cambridgeshire Constabulary’s approach to tackling domestic
abuse’ 2014.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To note the report.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

3.1

To review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken, by the Commissioner in
connection with the discharge of the Commissioner’s functions.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

In September 2013, HMIC was commissioned by the Home Secretary to inspect the police
response to domestic violence and abuse.
HMIC conducted their inspection of the
Constabulary in December 2013 and revisited in February 2014. In March 2014, HMIC
published their full overarching report on all force inspections ‘Everyone’s business: Improving
the police response to domestic abuse’ along with individual force reports.

4.2

All Commissioners have a statutory duty under section 55 of the Police Act 1996 to comment
on reports published by HMIC about their force and arrange for those comments to be
published in such a manner as appears appropriate to each individual Commissioner. Any
comments, including any that the Chief Constable may have, can be included within the
Commissioner’s published comments. A copy of the published document must be sent to the
Home Secretary. HMIC also require a copy for their information.

4.3

In addition to the statutory reporting requirement, Commissioners also have a statutory duty,
amongst other duties, to hold the Chief Constable to account for the performance of the force’s
officers and staff; scrutinise, support and challenge the overall performance of the force
including the priorities agreed with the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan; and maintain an
efficient and effective police force.

4.4

I chair the Business Co-ordination Board (BCB) which is a monthly meeting between myself,
the Deputy Commissioner, Chief Constable, Deputy Chief Constable and other senior officers
and staff of the Constabulary and my Office, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner.
It is a forum in which current and future business is discussed between the senior leaders of the
two bodies, focussing on issues relating to strategy, governance, business and holding the
Chief Constable to account.

83

4.5

I fulfil my statutory duty to comment on HMIC reports by publishing the minutes of BCB
meetings where I have held the Chief Constable to account for the report’s findings and the
Constabulary’s response.

4.6

My Police and Crime Plan includes a commitment to protect vulnerable people from abuse. I
requested a report for the Board in November 2013 which set out the work that had been
undertaken to prioritise Domestic Abuse. This paper highlighted some performance issues and
that the Constabulary had requested a peer review to be conducted.

5.

HMIC INSPECTION

5.1

HMIC’s December 2013 inspection considered:
•

the effectiveness of the Constabulary’s approach to domestic violence and abuse,
focussing on the outcome for victims and whether risks to victims of domestic violence
and abuse are adequately managed;

•

identifying lessons learnt from how the Constabulary approach domestic violence and
abuse; and

•

making any necessary recommendations in relation to these findings when considered
alongside current practice.

5.2

The findings of the HMIC inspection were disappointing. HMIC had significant concerns about
the ability of the Constabulary to deal consistently and appropriately with victims of domestic
abuse and to reduce the risk of harm to them. HMIC made 15 recommendations which ranged
from reviewing capacity, training, structures and processes through to partnership working and
leadership.

5.3

As soon as the findings were available, I liaised with Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary
during which the major concerns were detailed. I then spoke to the Chief Constable to obtain
his initial response. The Chief Constable informed me that:
•
•
•

he was disappointed and concerned and accepted the findings;
the Constabulary were able to respond to the issues raised;
that an action plan was urgently being prepared to address the findings.

The action plan was rapidly prepared and actions commenced to address the issues raised.
5.4

I requested an update on the Constabulary’s response for consideration at the BCB meeting on
22 January 2014. The Chief Constable informed me of progress at that meeting.

5.5

HMIC re-inspected the Constabulary in February 2014 to establish whether progress had been
made. I requested an update from the Chief Constable following this re-inspection at the
27 February 2014 BCB meeting. The Chief Constable reported that the results of the initial
debrief were extremely positive with HMIC commenting that significant progress had been
made since the initial inspection. HMIC had also reviewed the action plan which was assessed
as being coherent, robust and provided confidence that the Constabulary were effectively
managing all the recommendations previously made.

5.6

Following publishing of the HMIC report in March 2014, I requested a full report from the Chief
Constable to the June 2014 BCB meeting covering the Constabulary’s response to the
inspection findings. The Chief Constable provided a full report on progress of the
implementation of the action plan which was under his direct leadership. The Constabulary had
accepted all of the recommendations made by HMIC and attributed much of the improvements
to the ever growing culture of victim care.

5.7

The Minutes of the June 2014 BCB meeting will be submitted to the 24 July 2014 BCB for
consideration and approval. Once approved, these minutes will be submitted to the Home

84

Office as my published comments in respect of the HMIC Report in accordance with the my
statutory duty under the Police Act 1996.
6.

GOING FORWARD

6.1

I am reassured that there is a commitment throughout the Constabulary to continually strive for
improvements to the way that domestic abuse is handled, in particular ensuring that there is a
strong focus on identifying and reducing vulnerability for victims.

6.2

Equally, both the Constabulary and myself recognise the importance of partnership and interagency work to tackle domestic abuse but acknowledge that there is still work required at a
partnership level to achieve this.

6.3

I will continue to hold the Chief Constable to account for this area of work.

7.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

7.1

‘Cambridgeshire Constabulary’s approach to tackling domestic abuse’, HMIC 2014
http://www.hmic.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/03/cambridgeshire-approach-to-tacklingdomestic-abuse.pdf
‘Everyone’s business: Improving the police response to domestic abuse’, HMIC 2014
http://www.hmic.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/04/improving-the-police-response-todomestic-abuse.pdf
Police Act 1996 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/16/section/55
Police and Crime Plan http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2012/08/Cambridgeshire-Police-and-Crime-Plan-10-June-2014.pdf
BCB meetings – papers and minutes http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/businesscoordination-board/

85

This page is intentionally left blank

86

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 11

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Contact Officer(s) – Dorothy Gregson
Contact Details – cambs-pcc@cambs.pnn.police.uk 0300 333 3456

OBJECTIVE TWO – DELIVER POLICING WITHIN THE AVAILABLE BUDGET
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update the Police and Crime Panel (the “Panel”) on the progress
made towards Objective Two of the Police and Crime Plan (the “Plan”) – Deliver Policing within
the Available Budget.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To note the report.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

When I took office my intention was for evolution of the former Police Authority’s Local Policing
Plan rather than a revolutionary approach and starting from scratch. I have treated the Plan as a
‘live’ document; some aspects of the Plan are still relevant after 18 months and other aspects
have been subject to variations. These variations will continue as required.

3.2

I have worked to deliver the actions and outcomes specified in the Plan and to deliver my
Pledges. I have never been one for targets and have always gone to great lengths not to set
any. The Pledges in my Plan are based on what the public have flagged up to me and what they
would like to see from Cambridgeshire Constabulary (the “Constabulary”). The overall goal is to
reduce crime and improve public confidence.

4.

PLEDGE – VISIBLE POLICING

4.1

Protecting the front line has remained a priority and we look to do that through innovation as well
as collaboration. Cambridgeshire’s innovative root and branch response to the financial
challenges we face, Programme Metis, has taken centre stage during the past year and we have
been pleased to welcome on board Bedfordshire and Hertfordshire. Use of modern technology
will greatly reduce the time needed to process paperwork and allow the Constabulary to provide
visible policing, through allowing officers to spend more time in the community.

4.2

I have supported Programme Metis to be established in Cambridgeshire and secured £2m of
Home Office Innovation Fund money to roll the programme out to collaboration partners
Hertfordshire and Bedfordshire. Metis is a root and branch redesign of all force systems,
processes and structures which focuses on utilising technology to release officers’ time, allowing
them to spend more hours out in their communities. The direction of travel is to reduce the need
for officers to return to fixed bases, increasing their availability through the effective use of
technology including mobile data devices. The ultimate aim is to allow the public easier contact
with the police with the organisation becoming paperless, enabling more efficient sharing of

87

information across the criminal justice system.
4.3

Programme Metis builds on and will help integrate the many other areas of business that the
three police and crime commissioners and chief constables are either already, or planning to,
collaborate on.

4.4

The Chief Constable’s leadership of Programme Metis (‘Commissioner’s Pledges’) is one of two
interlinked change programmes aimed at improving service efficiency and finding the millions of
pounds necessary to balance the budget in the coming years. The scale of this change cannot
be underestimated.

4.5

As at June 320 mobile working solutions devices have been deployed to frontline operational
officers, which has resulted in a headline saving of 65 minutes per officer per day for those on
the slate pilot.

5.

PLEDGE – INCREASED COLLABORATIVE WORKING

5.1

I have continued to lead and support further collaboration opportunities, which will help deliver
better services and close the funding gap. Cambridgeshire forms part of a three-way Strategic
Alliance with Bedfordshire and Hertfordshire. All parties have agreed to work together to identify
how collaboration between them can be dramatically increased to include ‘Operational Support’
and ‘Organisational Support’ services which include functions such as HR, fleet, ICT, custody
and call handling. A Memorandum of Understanding has been signed between the three police
and crime commissioners and chief constables and work is progressing rapidly to develop
business cases for each of the areas. Cambridgeshire’s progress on collaboration, including
opportunities to explore ‘blue light’ collaboration, was something I gave evidence on to the Home
Affairs Select Committee and was subsequently highlighted in their report.

5.2

I have signed agreements to collaboration on Cameras, Tickets and Collisions; Counter
Terrorism; Regional Disaster Victim Identification Unit and Victims and an agreement to begin
work on developing business cases to collaborate fully on finance, fleet, estates and facilities,
legal services, human resources, training, ICT, firearms licensing, public contact centres, control
rooms, custody and crime recording.

5.3

As a result of a lot of hard work being put into developing common understanding between the
constabularies and the police and crime commissioners, I have agreed to the establishment of
the collaboration change team which is now in place to move forward the collaborative work. The
first fruits of this has recently to move the ICT function forward across the 3 forces

6.

MEASURES OF SUCCESS

6.1

MANAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE APPROVED BUDGET FOR 2013/14 OF £131.579M

6.1.1 Services were managed within budget during the financial year and the effective usage of
resources during the financial year meant a planned underspend of £3.4m was achieved. This
will be used to smooth the impact of future funding reductions. This
6.1.2 Additional funding was also successfully secured during 2013/14 from the Home Office to
support Metis (as mentioned in para 4.2) and from the Ministry of Justice to build victims
services capability and capacity.

88

6.2

DEMONSTRATE PROGRESS TOWARD MAKING BUDGET SAVINGS OF £7.3 M IN THE
PERIOD TO 2016/17

6.2.1 Savings of £3.7m were identified in the 2013/14 budget and a further £4.9m in the 2014/15
budget. This is a total of £8.6m over 2 years. Despite this, the government has continued with its
austerity programme and further reductions in funding have been predicted until at least
2017/18. This means that as a Police and Crime Commissioner, in conjunction with the
Constabulary have to identify a further £12.2m of savings.
6.2.2 I have already set the path for the identification of these savings through the approval of
programmes such as metis, which enables the constabulary to operate with greater efficiency
and free up officer time through the provision of effective technology.
7.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

7.1

Police and Crime Plan http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2012/08/Cambridgeshire-Police-and-Crime-Plan-10-June-2014.pdf
Medium Term Financial Plan 2104/15 – 2017/18 http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2013/03/MTFP-2014-18-FINAL.pdf

89

This page is intentionally left blank

90

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 12

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Contact Officer – Dorothy Gregson
Contact Details – cambs-pcc@cambs.pnn.police.uk 0300 333 3456

HOLDING TO ACCOUNT
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to demonstrate to the Police and Crime Panel (“the Panel”) how
the Police and Crime Commissioner (“the Commissioner”) holds Cambridgeshire Constabulary
to account for force performance, ensuring value for money and engaging with local people.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

To note the report.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

3.1

To review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken by the Commissioner in
connection with the discharge of the Commissioner’s functions.

4.

BACKGROUND

4.1

As Commissioner I have a statutory duty under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act
2011 (“the 2011 Act”), amongst other duties, to hold the Chief Constable to account for force
performance, ensuring value for money and engaging with local people.

4.2

The Policing Protocol Order 2011 (“the Protocol”) sets out to all Police and Crime
Commissioners, Chief Constables and Police and Crime Panels how their functions are
exercised in relation to each other.
It does not supersede or vary the legal duties and
requirements of the Commissioner or the Chief Constable.

4.3

The Protocol provides that Commissioners have the legal power and duty to scrutinise, support
and challenge the overall performance of the force including against the priorities agreed within
the Police and Crime Plan.

4.4

The Protocol also makes it clear that the will of Parliament is that the Chief Constable shall
remain operationally independent from the Commissioner. As with any legislation there are
some definitive statements within it but there has to be some element of interpretation.

4.5

However, in the spirit of the Protocol the relationship between Commissioners and Chief
Constable should be one built on principles of goodwill, professionalism, openness and trust
and in Cambridgeshire it is.

4.6

My role as Commissioner is strategic and the Chief Constable’s operational. However, this may
appear somewhat simplistic as the Chief Constable has strategic responsibilities for running
such a large organisation. In practical terms the way that the Protocol has been interpreted is
that day to day running of the force, including deployments of staff and decisions in relation to
specific incidents, is exclusively the responsibility of the Chief Constable. Whilst at times the

91

Chief Constable informs me of specific operations and I can ask the Chief Constable
concerning operational issues, the responsibility for such issues remains with the Chief
Constable. As Commissioner I need to exercise caution to ensure that I do not interfere with
the Chief Constable’s operational independence as provided for in statute. For example, the
deployment of Police Community Support Officers is an operational issue.
4.7

The exact wording of the Protocol makes it clear:
“The Chief Constable is responsible to the public and accountable to the PCC for—
being the operational voice of policing in the force area and regularly explaining to the
public the operational actions of officers and staff under their command.”

5.

HOLDING TO ACCOUNT

5.1

As Commissioner I can hold Cambridgeshire Constabulary (“the Constabulary”) to account
through the Chief Constable. The relationship between me and the Chief Constable is a key
one. I have worked hard to ensure that our relationship is one of support and challenge. I have
instituted a range of formal and informal meetings to ensure this relationship is a positive one.

5.2

The key formal meeting is the Business Co-ordination Board (BCB). The agenda for these
meetings are divided into four key areas: strategy, governance, business and holding to
account. BCB enables me to discuss, scrutinise and hold the Chief Constable to account for
efficient and effective policing and also to be kept informed of the Chief Constable’s decisions
and operational activity in a timely manner. For example, this includes how the Constabulary is
delivering against my Pledges, such as joint multi-agency working to tackle crime and 101 call
handling performance.

5.3

The BCB papers are published on my website providing for transparency and accountability in
decision making and demonstrating how I am delivering against my Pledges.

5.4

Strategy, governance, business and holding to account all need to function well. This can only
be achieved through having effective procedures in place that enable business to be done in
the right way, for the right reason at the right time. This is achieved through a governance
framework that comprises of systems and processes which provide controls to ensure that
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards. Equally, it ensures
that public money is used economically, effectively and efficiently, and any risks are managed
accordingly. For instance, the Governance Framework and Risk Registers along with forums
such as an independent Joint Audit Committee and one that has oversight of the Professional
Standards Department ensures that appropriate controls assurances are in place for
Cambridgeshire but also for business areas where the Constabulary has collaborated with other
forces.
Taken together, these should mean that these controls enhance public trust and
confidence in myself, my office and the Constabulary.

6.

EXAMPLES

6.1

Efficient and Effectiveness

6.1.1

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) independently assesses the efficiency and
effectiveness of police forces and policing across a number and range of policing at both
individual police force level and critical national issues and themes (thematic inspections).
Examples of recent inspections range from serious crime, adherence to crime recording
processes, information management and whether the police are delivering value for money.

6.1.2

HMIC has an annual inspection programme for both individual and thematic inspections. As a
guide, they have carried out a number of inspections of Cambridgeshire Constabulary since
January 2014, with more planned for this calendar year.

92

6.1.3

I have a statutory duty under section 55 of the Police Act 1996 to comment on reports published
by HMIC about the Constabulary and arrange for those comments to be published in such
manner as appears to the Commissioner to be appropriate. I hold the Chief Constable to
account for the outcome of the HMIC inspection through BCB by requesting what the
Constabulary’s response is. For instance, recent responses to HMIC inspections have been an
action plan or a change in the relevant business area to take forward and embed
recommendations made. I also fulfil my statutory duty to comment on HMIC reports by
publishing the minutes of BCB meetings; meetings where I have held the Chief Constable to
account for the report’s findings and the Constabulary’s response.

6.2

101 Call Handling – an example of holding to account

6.2.1

Since November 2012 I have focused on call handling performance in response to public
concerns. The issue has featured regularly in my monthly BCB meetings allowing me to actively
monitor and scrutinise performance and hold the Chief Constable to account in this important
area of business.

6.2.2

As I reported to the Panel at their June 2014 meeting, call handling performance of both 999
calls and non-emergency 101 calls remains steady and the Constabulary continues to work to
improve their performance. However, the 101 calls that are of a general or crime recording
nature are routed through to separate staff within the Police Service Centre and it is here at this
secondary pick-up that a caller can experience some delay, particularly at peak times.

6.2.3

As the secondary pick-up is still a cause of concern for members of the public it therefore
remains a priority for me. As such, I have continually scrutinised the Constabulary’s
performance in ensuring work continues to improve the service.

6.2.4

The Chief Constable has submitted reports to BCB regularly since October 2013 to update me
on performance, the actions that the Constabulary are taking to improve performance and the
number of complaints received about the service. BCB have noted the issues on the
performance level but also further highlighted their continued concern regarding the secondary
pick-up and that there was further work to be done in relation to complaints.

6.2.5

Given the concerns over the performance, I have met with the Head of Contact Management
and the Local Policing Commander to both emphasis and reiterate my concerns and to stress
the imperative need to get the secondary pick-up service right for the public. I have also visited
the call centre on a number of occasions.

6.2.6

One of my staff has also linked with the Constabulary’s Head of Contact Management and
Police Service Centre staff to further understand the influencing factors relating to performance
and closely analyse the actual performance statistics. This will inform the further analysis work
I have asked the Constabulary to provide me with of 101 answering times via a paper at a
forthcoming BCB meeting.

6.2.7

In addition, and to further support the need for continual improvement in the service, I am
conducting an online survey of users of the 101 service, to help identify what the specific issues
are and how they can be addressed. This survey was originally scheduled to run until the
23rd June 2014. However, as I realise service delivery of 101 will remain important to the
public, I am intending to run the survey on an indefinite basis so that it becomes a means by
which the public can share their experiences of calling 101. The on-going capture of these
experiences will enable me to continue to hold the Constabulary to account for their
performance.

7.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

7.1

Policing Protocol Order 2011 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/2744/contents/made
BCB meetings – papers and minutes http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/businesscoordination-board/
Governance information http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/accessing-information/

93

Report to Panel ‘Objective 1 – Maintaining Local Police Performance’ June 2014
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=543&MId=3391&Ver=4
Police Act 1996 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/16/section/55

101 call handling survey http://cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/survey/101-call-handling/.
Police and Crime Plan http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2012/08/Cambridgeshire-Police-and-Crime-Plan-10-June-2014.pdf

94

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Agenda Item No. 13

30 JULY 2014

Public Report

Report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Contact Officer(s) Dorothy Gregson
Contact Details – cambs-pcc@cambs.pnn.police.uk 0300 333 3456

UPDATE ON PROGRESS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE VICTIMS’ HUB
1.

PURPOSE

1.1

To respond to the Panel’s request for an update on work to develop and implement a police-led
Victims’ Hub in Cambridgeshire that will deliver a victim services and referral mechanism and
provide a gateway for the integrated management of victims of crime.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that the Panel note the contents of the report and the direction of travel
being taken by the Constabulary.

3.

BACKGROUND

3.1

From October 2014 Police and Crime Commissioners will be responsible for commissioning the
majority of emotional and practical support services for victims of crime locally.

3.2

In the second formal variation to my Police and Crime Plan, which the Panel endorsed in
February 2014, I said how a joint Victim Strategy for Cambridgeshire would direct the
commissioning of victim-driven support services. I also set out how work to support victims of
crime in Cambridgeshire would benefit from an integrated management approach. (See page 7
Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Plan).

3.3

Decision Record CPCC 2014-004, which I brought to the March Police and Crime Panel,
signalled my decision to move out of Ministry of Justice national funding arrangements with
Victim Support to local commissioning of victim referral mechanisms from October 2014 in an
early adopter capacity. The notice also informed the Panel that I was working with the
Constabulary to support them to provide this referral service through a police-led Victims’ Hub
providing integrated management of victims of crime.

3.4

The Constabulary’s Implementation Team has since been developing the Hub model. As an
‘early adopter’ they have been actively engaging with the Ministry of Justice and other ‘early
adopter’ forces to address issues of interoperability and share solutions. This work has enabled
them to present me with their preferred model for the Victims’ Hub which will provide an
enhanced service for victims of crime in Cambridgeshire.

95

4.

VICTIMS’ HUB MODEL

4.1

The Hub will work alongside existing crime recording, criminal justice, witness care and
investigation management functions at an existing police estate Copse Court in Peterborough.
This approach in most parts mirrors a victim’s journey from point of report and investigation
through to any court process and beyond.

4.2

Every victim of crime, bereaved relatives, spokespersons or parents of victims under 18 will
have access to the Hub service. The Initial Victims Needs Assessment will determine whether
that contact is by letter, electronically or by personal contact from a Victim Care Co-ordinator. At
present existing services will only consider approximately 70 per cent of direct victims of crime
even before a needs assessment has been completed. In addition businesses, where there is
named point of contact, will be entitled to access services and provisions under the Code of
Practice for Victims of Crime.

4.3

The Victim Care Co-ordinators will contact all victims with a need identified and carry out a
Detailed Victim Needs Assessment (DVNA). This will establish whether a victim is entitled to an
enhanced service under the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime and shape a bespoke care
plan, which may or may not include emotional or practical support to enable them to cope and
recover. Hub staff will also have access to a far greater range of information compared to
existing providers to answer questions from victims and keep them updated on their case.

4.4

The support provided by the Hub will generally fall into four broad categories;
•

Emotional and practical support including signposting to services

•

More detailed/longer term emotional and practical support

•

Support and referral to existing services that can help a victim cope and recover

•

Referral to victims’ services commissioned by my office.

4.5

A Victims’ Hub website will signpost victims of crime, both those who choose to report their
crime to the police and those who don’t, to the local and national support services available.
Access to support services for people who do not wish to report crime to police is a key
requirement under the EU Directive on the Minimum Standards, Rights, Support and Protection
of Victims of Crime (specifically Articles 8 and 9).

4.6

A recruitment process has already begun to bring in local staff, with local knowledge to work in
the Hub. The office space has been secured and a new case management system based on
Microsoft Dynamics CRM is being developed in-house specifically for the Hub. This system has
a full suite of automated business processes such as notifications, email and letter generation.
Existing force systems will automatically populate the system with the information needed by
the Hub staff.

5.

LONGER TERM EMOTIONAL AND PRACTICAL SUPPORT FOR VICTIMS

5.1

From October 2014 I am looking to award Victim Support in Cambridgeshire a grant, from the
Ministry of Justice Victims Fund, to support the transition and development of the Hub. They
currently employ a network of volunteers who have extensive training and experience of
providing support to victims of crime and the grant would enable this to continue.

5.2

The use of volunteers extends the reach of the Hub and enables the wider community to
support each other and create safer, stronger communities. The Constabulary will at the same
time continue to develop its own volunteer network to support the Hub over the transitional
period to April 2015.

96

6.

CONSULTATION

6.1

A wide range of providers of victims’ services have been consulted throughout the design of the
Hub through an OPCC Provider Forum and existing engagement opportunities. These
organisations have shared their views as providers and ensured the victims’ voice is heard.
This engagement and consultation process will be an ongoing part of the Hub’s work to ensure
its services, and those it signposts and refers to, constantly respond to the changing needs of
victims of crime in Cambridgeshire.

7.

NEXT STEPS

7.1

The Hub will begin operating in a shadow format from September 1 and will take over
responsibility for all victim referrals from October 1, 2014.

7.2

I will continue to scrutinise the work of the Victims’ Hub through my Business Co-ordination
Board to ensure it is delivering a service which victims of crime in Cambridgeshire are entitled
to.

8.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Plan http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2012/08/Cambridgeshire-Police-and-Crime-Plan-10-June-2014.pdf
Strategic Vision of Support for Victims of Crime in Cambridgeshire
http://www.cambridgeshire-pcc.gov.uk/police-crime-plan/victims-witnesses/
Code of Practice for Victims of Crime
https://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/docs/victims_code_2013.pdf
EU Directive on the Minimum Standards, Rights, Support and Protection of Victims of Crime
http://www.justice.org.uk/data/files/resources/340/Protecting-Victims-EU-Competences-andmechanisms-for-safeguards.pdf

97

This page is intentionally left blank

98

C P
C P
Cambridgeshire Police and
Crime Panel

Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel:
Annual Report 2014
Foreword
In 2011 Britain’s coalition government introduced the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act providing for the election of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) to
replace Police Authorities in each force area.
The force area for Cambridgeshire Constabulary covers the local authority areas of
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough; for the purposes of this report the area is known
collectively as Cambridgeshire.
On 15 November 2012 Sir Graham Bright was elected Cambridgeshire’s first PCC.
The Act also created Police and Crime Panels (PCPs) to exercise oversight of the
Commissioners’ work. This first Annual Report of Cambridgeshire’s Police and Crime Panel,
describes the background work undertaken in setting up the Panel, the work carried out in
the first eighteen months of its existence and the plans for the future.
The people of Cambridgeshire and Peterborough can be reassured that, acting on their
behalf, the Panel is committed to exercising its statutory duties of holding the Commissioner
to account for the delivery of his Police and Crime Plan and supporting him by adding value
to his work wherever possible.
MBRIDGESHIRE
The Panel’s evolution
In order to assist in developing the panel in accordance with legislation and, importantly,
within the spirit of the legislation officers representing all the local authorities, The outgoing
Police Authority, Community Safety Partnerships and Constabulary worked with members to
develop a shadow panel in order that the panel developed in accordance with the details of
the legislation and the spirit of the legislation.

99

During these meetings it was agreed that Peterborough would provide officer support as the
‘lead authority’.
The work of officers and the shadow panel included identifying panel membership in
accordance with the legislation, adopting a process to recruit two independent co-opted
members, draft terms of reference, rules of procedure and setting a proposed meeting and
scrutiny schedule.
In accordance with the legislation officers had to seek Home Office approval to set the
elected member numbers at eleven in order to achieve the required political balance;
supplemented with the two independent members this resulted in a panel comprising
thirteen members.
The shadow panel met on three occasions between September and November 2012,
meeting for the first time as a full panel in December 2012. The Panel agreed a meeting
schedule of four panel meetings a year plus an annual general meeting. All Panel meetings
are held in public.
The Panel’s overall responsibility is to scrutinise and support the work of the Commissioner,
specifically:
•
•
•
•
•
•

To review the PCC’s Police and Crime Plan
To hold the PCC to account for the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan – the panel
has powers to request any necessary information from the PCC on his decisions
To review and report on the appointment of the Chief Constable and other senior
appointments – the Panel has powers to veto the appointment of the Chief Constable
To review the Commissioner’s proposed police precept – the panel has powers to
veto the precept
To scrutinise the PCC’s annual report
To consider complaints against the PCC.

Work to April 2014
Since its inception, the Panel has met on eight occasions.
One of its first roles was to confirm the appointment of a Deputy Police and Crime
Commissioner and it did so in November 2012, with the result that Mr Brian Ashton serves in
that role.
It has now scrutinised the precept for the financial years 2013-14 and 2014-15.
The Panel has scrutinised the Medium Term Financial Plan 2013-17.
It has approved the Police and Crime Plan and a number of working variations thereof.
It has negotiated and agreed a Protocol defining the working relationship between the PCC
and PCP.

100

A procedure for handling complaints has been agreed and scrutinising complaints as a
standing agenda item has been agreed,
The Commissioners first Annual Report and Performance Framework have both been
reviewed.
The Panel has received reports on the Commissioners Engagement and Communications
Plan, the Collaboration arrangements between Forces, Victim Services planning and the
costs associated with the Commissioner’s functions.
The minutes of these meetings can be found on the Cambridgeshire Police and Crime
website at: http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=543&Year=0
The next twelve months
The panel have been alive to some helpful review work carried out in relation to the
operation of Panels nationally, in particular the review carried out by the Centre for Public
Scrutiny; ‘Police and Crime Panels: the first year’.
Since its inception the panel has met its legislative requirements. It now wants to move
forward and has agreed an agenda for the next twelve months that will add an additional
level of scrutiny to the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan and the pledges he made on
appointment. Therefore, from June 2014 the following Policing Plan priorities will scrutinised
in depth by theme at each meeting:
•

Maintaining local police performance

•

Delivering Policing within the available budget

•

Continuing to tackle crime and disorder

•

Keeping People Safe

•

Community engagement.

The nature of local government and democracy means that almost annually there will be
changes to the membership of the panel. The panel arrangements put in place over the last
eighteen months, and the desire to be more proactive in its scrutiny, place the panel in a
good place to minimise the disruption of any such changes.
Conclusion
The Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel is now actively carrying out its role and a fully
developed, constructive working relationship with the Commissioner is in place.
The Panel has a vital role to perform in exercising, on behalf of the people of
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, the ‘checks and balances’ envisaged in the legislation.

101

Residents can be assured that members of the Panel will apply themselves diligently to
performing their part in ensuring a sustainable and effective police force and combating
crime and disorder.
About the Panel
The Panel comprises the current membership:
•

Councillor Mac McGuire (Chairman) (Cambridgeshire County Council)

•

Councillor Jason Ablewhite (Vice Chairman) (Huntingdonshire District Council)

•

Councillor Peter Reeve (Cambridgeshire County Council)

•

Councillor Michael Shellens (Cambridgeshire County Council)

•

Councillor Ben Shelton (South Cambs District Council)

•

Councillor David Oliver (Fenland District Council)

•

Councillor Tom Hunt (East Cambs District Council)

•

Councillor Lewis Herbert (Cambridge City Council)

•

Councillor Julia Davidson (Peterborough City Council)

•

Councillor Michael Fletcher (Peterborough City Council)

•

Councillor David Over (Peterborough City Council)

•

Christine Graham (Independent Co-opted Member)

•

Vacancy for Independent Co-opted Member

102

103

Election of Chairman

Thursday 19 June 2014
ANNUAL MEETING,
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Peterborough
City Council, 2pm

Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Rules of Procedure
CPCC Annual Report 2013-2014
Maintain Local Police Objective Report
Decisions by the Commissioner
Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan

Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council

OFFICER

Review of Complaints

Public Questions

Independent Co-Opted Member

Election of Vice Chairman

TITLE/PURPOSE

DATE OF MEETING

CAMBRIDGESHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
AGENDA PLAN 2014-2015

Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

C P
C P

104

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council
Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

The role of the Chief Financial Officer

Co-opted Member Recruitment Update
Rules of Procedure
Decisions by the Commissioner
Domestic Abuse – Commissioners Response
to the HM Inspectorate of Constabulary
Report of 27 March 2014
Objective 2: Deliver policing within the
available budget Report
Holding the Police to Account
Update on Progress for Implementation of
Victims Hub
Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel

Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council

Public Questions

Wednesday 30 July 2014, 2pm
Bourges/Viersen Rooms, Town Hall,
Peterborough City Council

OFFICER

Review of Complaints

TITLE/PURPOSE

DATE OF MEETING

Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

C P
C P

105

Wednesday 28 January 2015
BUDGET MEETING
Huntingdon District Council, Civic Suite 1a

Wednesday 5 November, 2pm
Huntingdon District Council, Civic Suite 1a

DATE OF MEETING

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Decisions by the Commissioner

Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Review of Complaints
Objective 4: Keeping People Safe Report
Decisions by the Commissioner
Budget Precept 2015/2016

Public Questions

Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Objective 3: Continue to Tackle Crime and
Disorder Report

Review of Complaints

Public Questions
Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Annual Report 2013-2014
Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan

OFFICER

TITLE/PURPOSE

Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

C P
C P

106

Updated: 21 July 2014

Wednesday 18 March 2015
Huntingdon District Council, Civic Suite 1a

DATE OF MEETING

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Decisions by the Commissioner
Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan

Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office

Ian Phillips, Peterborough City Council

OFFICER

Objective 5: Maintain the Resilience of
Protective Services Report

Review of Complaints

Public Questions

Meeting Dates and Agenda Plan

TITLE/PURPOSE

Cambridgeshire Police
and Crime Panel

C P
C P

